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>>Committee commenced at 13:31

Chairman (Mr. Hickes): Good
afternoon, everyone. | would like to
welcome everybody to the Standing
Committee on Oversight and Operations
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and Public Accounts with regard to
Nunavut Tourism.

I would like to ask Mr. Mikkungwak to
lead us in prayer, please.

>>Prayer

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Everyone has a copy of the
agenda in front of them. Are there any
questions or concerns? With that, I will
go to section 3 in opening comments for
myself as Chair.

First of all, I would like to say “good
afternoon and thank you.”

Before we proceed, | ask all Members,
witnesses, and visitors to put their
cellphones and other electronic devices
on silent mode.

I would like to welcome everyone present
to this meeting of the Legislative
Assembly’s Standing Committee on
Oversight of Government Operations and
Public Accounts. We are meeting today
on the occasion of our Committee’s
hearing on Nunavut Tourism’s 2013-14
annual report, 2015-16 business plan, and
2012-17 strategic plan.

I would first like to introduce my
Committee colleagues:

Tony Akoak, Member for Gjoa Haven;

Pat Angnakak, Member for Igaluit-
Niagunnguu;

Joe Enook, Member for Tununig;

David Joanasie, Member for South
Baffin;

Pauloosie Keyootak, Member for
Ugqummiut;

Steve Mapsalak, Member for Aivilik;

Simeon Mikkungwak, Member for Baker
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Lake;

Mr. Allan Rumbolt, Member for Hudson
Bay;

Alexander Sammurtok, Member for
Rankin Inlet South and Co-Chair of
the Standing Committee;

Tom Sammurtok, Member for Rankin
Inlet North-Chesterfield Inlet;

Joe Savikataag, Member for Arviat
South; and of course,

Isaac Shooyook, Member for Quittiktug.

As Members will recall, a motion was
formally adopted at the Legislative
Assembly’s sitting of March 11, 2015 to
invite representatives from Nunavut
Tourism to appear before the Standing
Committee to “account in detail for the
association’s expenditures, activities, and
initiatives.”

Today’s hearing constitutes the first time
that Nunavut Tourism has been asked to
publicly account to elected MLAS in
detail for its proposed expenditures and
activities.

I would note that this Standing
Committee held similar hearings on the
Qullig Energy Corporation last
September.

I wish to take this opportunity to thank
Nunavut Tourism’s chief executive
officer and the chairperson of its board of
directors for appearing before us today.

As was noted in our Standing
Committee’s recent public announcement
concerning these hearings, the core
operating funding provided to Nunavut
Tourism by the Government of
Nunavut’s Department of Economic
Development and Transportation has
increased from $1.8 million in the 2014-
15 fiscal year to $3.08 million in the
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2015-16 fiscal year. This represents an
increase of over 70 percent.

It should also be noted that Nunavut
Tourism receives additional funding from
such entities as the Canadian Northern
Economic Development Agency.

Along with the Government of Nunavut
and Nunavut Tunngavik Incorporated,
Nunavut Tourism was one of the three
“tourism partner organizations” that
cooperated in the development of the
territory’s current tourism strategy, which
was publicly released through tabling in
the Legislative Assembly on May 16,
2013, just over two years ago.

The importance of tourism to the
territorial economy has long been
recognized. The tourism strategy
indicates that “In 2011, tourism-related
businesses generated more than $40.0
million in revenue, and represented 3.2%
of overall Nunavut Gross Domestic
Product. Accommaodation and outfitting
businesses alone employed 1,258
Nunavummiut.”

However, the strategy also describes the
challenges facing this sector of the
economy. It notes that “The tourism
industry in Nunavut remains
underdeveloped” and that it faces “a lack
of quality tourism products, insufficient
training for tourism, operators,
inadequate investment, and a lack of
organizational capacity and co-ordination
among tourism organizations.”

Consequently, our hearing will provide
an opportunity for Members of the
Standing Committee to address a number
of important themes and issues that have
emerged concerning Nunavut Tourism’s
expenditures, activities, and initiatives.
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These include:

e The governance relationship between
Nunavut Tourism’s board of
directors, its management, and the
Government of Nunavut’s
Department of Economic
Development and Transportation.

e The transparency of Nunavut
Tourism’s financial and operational
reporting.

e The appropriateness of Nunavut
Tourism’s organizational structure
and budgeting strategy.

e The appropriateness of Nunavut
Tourism’s current mandate, including
its capacity to successfully fulfill all
of its current responsibilities in such
different areas as destination
branding, market research, industry
advocacy, management of visitors’
centres, and provision of tourism
training and business aftercare
services.

e The extent to which Nunavut
Tourism has effectively cooperated in
the government’s ongoing review of
such legislation as the Travel and
Tourism Act.

e The extent to which Nunavut
Tourism has effectively cooperated in
the government’s development of a
new “marine tourism management
plan” that is to form the basis of a
new “cruise ship and yacht
management plan” to address
concerns that have been raised
regarding the activities and impact of
cruise ship traffic.

In keeping with parliamentary practice,
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the Standing Committee anticipates
reporting its findings and
recommendations to the Legislative
Assembly during the upcoming fall
sitting.

I would like to briefly address some
housekeeping matters. For the benefit of
our recording system, | would ask
witnesses to wait until I invite you to
proceed before activating your
microphone, and | would ask witnesses to
always go through the Chair when
responding to Members’ questions,
comments, and interventions.

I would also note that Members of the
Standing Committee have a number of
reports and documents in their possession
for ease of reference during this hearing.
To assist our witnesses in answering
questions, |1 would ask my colleagues to
be precise when referring to specific
pages or sections of the documents.

With that, I will again welcome everyone
to our hearing and invite the chairperson
of Nunavut Tourism’s board of directors
to make his opening statement. Thank
you.

Mr. Sakeeta: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and
Committee Members. We welcome this
opportunity to answer your questions and
share what Nunavut Tourism does. It is
necessary that the Members are aware
how the funds trusted to non-government
agencies are spent and what is
accomplished with them. Nunavut
Tourism has come under scrutiny in the
past. This hearing will provide the
Members the opportunity to get full
details of decisions made.

As a bit of a background, Nunavut
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Tourism was created in 1996, this being
one of the first Nunavut entities. Our
mission statement is to be the lead
agency working in partnerships with
governments, Inuit associations,
communities, and tourism operators to
promote tourism opportunities which
offer a means of sustainable economic
growth, cultural preservation, and social
benefits for the people of Nunavut.

Nunavut Tourism has made significant
strides in the last five years. A five-year
strategic plan for the organization has
been in effect since 2012. Membership
has grown from 42 members to over 150,
the vast majority of that being Nunavut-
based businesses from all three regions.

A comprehensive liability and other
insurance programs were put in place for
our members. Obtaining insurance has
been a barrier for many smaller
businesses. We have a more user-friendly
website, including cost-effective
advertising opportunities for our
members and a special member-only
section where insurance documents,
workshop presentations, member-specific
news stories, etcetera, are posted.

Nunavut Tourism chairs the pan-
territorial marketing consortium, which
won a national award in 2014 for its
advertising campaign during the first year
of the Amazing Race Canada.

We were very proud to be a part of the
group that worked on Tunngasaiji: A
Tourism Strategy for Nunavummiut,
which serves as a blueprint to build a
strong, sustainable Nunavut-based
tourism industry.

Nunavut Tourism has great programs in
place with our airline partners for our
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members to bring clients into Nunavut.

Nunavut Tourism is committed to sound,
financial management and has put
systems in place that have resulted in
audits with no management letters from
the auditors three years in a row.

Nunavut Tourism manages the three
regional visitor centres and is working to
make them integral parts of the
communities they serve with
programming and involvement in
community events. For example, in
Igaluit, the Unikkaarvik Visitor Centre is
involved in events like community clean-
up, Canada Day and Nunavut Day
celebrations.

Like any organization, we have not
always been perfect, but we learn from
both successes and things that we have
not been successful in. I am very proud
that we have a staff dedicated to growing
our industry and who are very committed
to Nunavut.

Mr. Chairman, we appreciate the
confidence that the legislature has shown
in Nunavut Tourism by increasing the
budget this year. These increases will go
toward the implementation of
Tunngasaiji.

Nunavut Tourism also leverages
significant funds from CanNor for
marketing, training, and research
activities. Funds from the regional Inuit
associations are accessed to help our
members attend training opportunities for
other projects that provide training
workshops or materials that can be
delivered to our members.

Nunavut Tourism is very proud to have a
voluntary board that meets monthly and
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are actively involved in the direction of
the organization. We have made changes
to our board structure a year ago to
ensure it is representative of Nunavut and
that the three regional Inuit associations
are involved.

Three new voting seats for small regional
businesses were added and three ex-
officio seats for the regional Inuit
associations. This was something that
was very important to our past chair,
Michael Hart. We were happy that we
could get this accomplished before he
suddenly passed away last August.

Our organization is in a transitional phase
with our CEO retiring in a couple
months. We are sorry to see her leave,
but we know that the foundation of the
organization is very solid and will move
forward. We have a solid transition plan
in place and do not anticipate any
shortfalls in our activities.

Mr. Chairman, we welcome this
opportunity to discuss what we do as an
organization with the Committee. One of
our shortfalls is sometimes blowing our
own horn about what we have
accomplished.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my
opening statement. We will be pleased to
answer questions the Members have.
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Sakeeta. Are
there any general comments to the
opening comments? With that, I’m going
to go directly into questions. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. | wish to welcome
everyone who is here.
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One of the reasons that we wanted to
have a meeting with you is because there
may be the possibility of
misunderstandings between the two
parties. We both represent the people of
Nunavut and we have to be accountable
and open between ourselves and the
people of Nunavut.

We thought that the people of Nunavut
would have a better idea of what Nunavut
Tourism does if we had a public hearing
and for the benefit of the Members of the
Legislative Assembly, we would also
have a better idea of what your
organization does.

My first question is regarding the core
budget for Nunavut Tourism for 2013-14.
The auditor’s report for Nunavut
Tourism’s 2013-14 financial statements
was signed on June 11, 2014. When was
the 2013-14 annual report formally
approved by Nunavut Tourism’s board of
directors? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Just to clarify for
the witnesses, this initial round of
questions will be on the 2013-14 annual
report. Witnesses.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The annual report was finished and
passed by the board in the end of July
and then was translated and submitted to
the department in both languages in early
September 2014.

Chairman: Thank you. If you could just
acknowledge the Chair when you’re done
and then we will know when to transfer
the microphone over. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. On the same line item, to
what extent does the Government of
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Nunavut’s Department of Economic
Development and Transportation review
and approve the contents of Nunavut
Tourism’s annual reports? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook.
Witnesses.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We discuss what is included in general
terms and then provide them with a draft
before the translation and then have it
translated. The report is approved by the
board because on occasion, there are
comments in there that may be slightly
critical of the government in terms of the
implementation of Tunngasaiji or
something, but they do not have the final
say. It’s with the board of directors that
approve the final annual report. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Just
for your own use, there will be a light
that comes on at the top when your
microphone is turned on. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. For further clarity, do |
understand that your annual reports are
submitted to the Department of
Economic Development and
Transportation and there is no revision or
amendment made by the department; it is
up to the board of directors? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Our annual report is a compilation of our
four quartely reports which are presented
to and approved by the Department of
Econmic Development and
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Transportation, so they have appoved all
of the quarterly reports. The annual report
is just a summary of the year’s activities.
ED&T does see the quarterly reports,
approves them, and makes comments on
those at the end of each quarter. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Dupuis. Mr.
Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Has the Department of
Economic Development and
Transportation ever ordered Nunavut
Toursim to either add or remove specific
language or information from its annual
reports and, if so, what were the
circumstances? That’s for your annual
report. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No, they have not. That request has never
been made. Any comments or concerns
are discussed at a quarterly meeting and
it’s never about a particular activity or a
particular language. It’s usually revolving
around how activities have been carried
out and if something hasn’t been done in
a particular quarter, why that hasn’t
happened when we thought it was going
to. That sort of thing sometimes happens
because of resources.

A couple of years ago, we were going to
offer a wilderness first aid course in
quarter 3 and we couldn’t get the
participants and the instructer ‘til quarter
4, so it was moved, but no, they have
never asked us to remove any specific
language. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms Dupuis. Mr.
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Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Again on the same
subject, Nunavut Tourism’s annual
reports are currently not readily available
to the general public or for myself as an
ordinary citizen. | can’t access those
reports. They’re not available to the
general public on the Nunavut Tourism
website. At present, only registered
members of the association are able to
download the annual reports. Why are
Nunavut Tourism’s annual reports not
readily accessible to the general public?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That is a problem that we’re trying to
figure how to deal with. Because our
website is primarly for the marketing of
Nunavut to visitors that want to come
here, they don’t necessarily want access
to our annual reports. We’re trying to
figure out how to make it available to the
residents of Nunavut or anyone that
wants to without making our financial
statements available to basically the
world.

Traditionally, on tourism for the
websites, the full financial statements of
an organization would not be posted, so
that is something that we are looking at.
The reason that the members’ section on
our website is accessed by a specific,
each member has a password and an
entry code, is because there are chat
functions on that website for our
members that they can chat among
themselves and post other documents that
may not also be that they want to share
with the public or they’re trying to work
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on a project or something. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Dupuis. Mr.
Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Will you direct me,
please. | also wanted to touch up on the
budget. The representative stated that
they don’t want the financial statements
to be accessed by the world. Mr.
Chairman, if you would direct me,
please. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Enook, yes, you can
proceed with that. It’s the same line of
questioning.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. If | understood the subject
you brought up correctly, you stated that
you don’t have your annual reports
available through the website because
you don’t want to show your financial
statements to the world. Is it because the
financial statements are confidential or
what is the reasoning behind this? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Mr.
Sakeeta.

Mr. Sakeeta: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I think there might have been some
misunderstanding in that answer. We are
having issues on how to make the
documents available to the public and not
to the entire world, so we don’t want
other people other than Nunavummiut to
have access to those documents. We are
looking at ways to make these available.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis, did you want to
supplement?

Cb>*LAYL*oPNe DA PASL*aPNe Ca
<D0 CALACPbCP*a o] %®I%,

Ab/PCSe OLNNJO): Sgh*al™ ™ D>A. C
A_ob.

Aob: Sdral®, AbY/RPCS. ALLSb
PablcnosT CA*a DN®CS, Ab/RPCS®,

A9 ANbA*@ **LA DPIN<KPLLL. CA%a
AARRNNPLLCGHTLED DSb>Z>GCIs,
Ced<ddse Pa DLeDINIa*NC CdP\DLnsb*MLC
0a S >cLoc Co L ALedC

AANREQ >, DR BGC Pa Db osC
Acn<SbcPC? A¥nFANbA*a c PLIs%.
sd*al™®, Ab/RPCSh,

Ab/<RP>CSe (ONNNJ): TC Ao, CA%a
JIAdNNL*Q®CAC.

Aob: Sdral®, Ab/RPCS. CA%a
D>Sb>/NGCPCAC DP/Jbd Ca ¢
LOA*L*MYNNR PedDA%a S0¢ Pa LNy
Cd*ND>SI* M YDb 00 ST ot AL
DPYSCSL. PaPysedPNd NNG®C>ILo*NC
b ®ILLC? Sdbeal®, AbYRUDCS,

Ab/<PCSe OLINJO): Sdh*al™, MC Aob. C
“NPC.

LPC (OLNMNUC): AbYRPCSe, DPYN®d+ acC.
Sb.o®IPNNaACSabdd NNHE
<DA*QP®NCPHo<SLE Cobed o™
005 LG PeD%, CAPI 0a DC>C
AP*NC CALADG® 02 2€ /c CaeIC CLbda™L
Cd®dNSL*MatNede PP<lo SboeIPNNLSC,

AbYRU>CSe ONMNJO): [ D>A, AcN<PLAD®?

14




Ms. Dupuis: Yes. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. It’s not that we don’t want
people to see them, but on a traditional
marketing website, financial statements
involving how much rent you pay and
that sort of thing are not on there. The
concern is that when we had the
members’ section open to the public, for
some people, it was too much
information. It’s not that we don’t want
them available to the public; we’re trying
to figure out how to make our website
user-friendly and the majority of the
users are tourists looking to come to
Nunavut.

The information is absolutely public and
anyone requesting an annual report or if
we can work to figure out a way to make
them public, we have no problem with
that. They have been tabled with all of
our funding partners, distributed to all
stakeholders, all of our members have
them, and anyone that requests them,
they would get one as soon as they asked
for one. We’re just not sure how to do
that on our website and keep our website
effective for what its intended purpose
was. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. I’'m
sure Mr. Enook will have another follow-
up question on this. If I recall correctly,
over 95 percent of your funding is
taxpayer funded. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) Mr.
Chairman, you just took the words right
out of my mouth. I’'m just a little
concerned (interpretation) that you are
being publicly funded and maybe due to
my not being computer literate enough,
for example, if | wanted to come and visit
Nunavut, | don’t have to look at that
information if | don’t want to. If | just
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want to see a certain topic, |1 would look
at it.

Is it possible to have that on the website
because you are using public funds?
You’re using government monies to
operate your entity. If | wanted to come
to Nunavut, I wouldn’t even bother
looking at the financial statements. |
would look at the communities, the
profiles, and so on. What is the problem
of having that information included in
there so that we can look at it? It would
be at our discretion whether we wanted to
see it or not. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Something that we’re looking at right
now is to make a change so that there
will still be a members’ only section for
the material that is just directed to our
members and have another section on the
website that’s accessible to everybody,
with our strategic plan, our business plan,
and our annual reports. That’s something
that’s being looked at right now to make
a modification to the website.

We will still keep a members’ only
section because there is information that
our members want to be able to exchange
with each other through the Internet in a
more closed environment, but that has
nothing to do with public spending.
That’s sort of people working together
and that sort of thing, but we are looking
at making a modification to the website
to that effect already. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Enook.

Cd<LJL CfRaT*bog®NDNC CI**MCD*a P,

Ceac Arn<DoO<SLE CRENM<IDA%a S HNC
b>Ja > LLC, LRLPIC Pa PY N C PedDAQ S.0f
CdyP¥an<sbsLC. >c SND>JILc
C2RPLOADNONE ALLPUYS MM bPe >d<
DL dC 5% ALLMPDA*QSHNC ac<deo
D>LEaqCSBLYSLLE. Sb.oALLS
CRFbCHbPNNY*a*MNc € Cd<LJa®
CdyP>N*@ S HNe CILLMM Do CdyD>*Ma s oNd.
Arn<DOS/LLLE CALAC* LN N AP+ Lob?
sdy*al™®, Ab/RPCSe,

A/ <MPCSe OLNNNJO): sd2al™, C Aob.
I>A.

I>A ONANUO): A, CL®a L*a SPrsPabCoc
AP7RPLLENEd® APy D<NNC® 0 PP<o
Cdy>Yea D¢ A5 PedIA*a ‘N<IS.o¢
Cdy>eea s HNe. Ld<d DPIAJNE <Sa >N*Ne
QSGQUCLS /DN Dobb M. Lea CL*a
SPrSPabC2C JoPN<IG b Ned®,

CAPI API®PPARTPNCDZLLC ShGhD>LPIC Abd<
DA% P®NILa A ACDC Pbec SbNJ*ao<SLC
CAPI AcPYD>SHCRC, Ld<s b asbNNeOC,
JBPPAGACSabd<d API®PAPIPIC CALa
CLbd< DNDLRNAC <IDA%QPo<SLC. Sdb*al™,
Ab/RDCS®,

Ab/PCSe OLANJO): Sdh*al™®. C Aob.

16




Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. | am done with this line.

My question is regarding your annual
reports that have not been tabled that are
supposed to be tabled here in the
Legislative Assembly. An annual report
for Nunavut Tourism has not been tabled
in the Legislative Assembly since
October 23, 2003. Do you provide
Nunavut Tourism’s annual reports to the
Department of Economic Development
and Transportation for subsequent tabling
in the Legislative Assembly? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, we do every year and for the last
year when we were asked to have it fully
translated so that it could be tabled in
both languages, we did so. We don’t
come to the legislature to table things, so
we provide to the department we report
to, but we have had it translated last year
when we were asked to so that it could be
tabled in both languages. They have been
provided every year and up until last
year, there was an executive summary
and the financial statements have always
been translated, so there was always a
component of the report in Inuktitut to be
tabled, and then when we were asked, we
had the full document translated. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Have you been provided
any explanations by the Department of
Economic Development and
Transportation as to why Nunavut
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Tourism’s annual reports are not being
tabled in the Legislative Assembly?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms.
Dupuis, sorry. Did you understand the
question, Ms. Dupuis? Basically has
ED&T ever given you reason why they
haven’t tabled your annual reports? Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No, we’ve never had that discussion. We
have provided them the documents and it
was my understanding that at last fall’s
session, our annual report would have
been tabled.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) If |
was in this House, which | am supposed
to be, | haven’t seen it. (interpretation)
The 2014-15 fiscal year ended a little
over two months ago. When will your
2014-15 annual report be completed?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Our audited statements have been
finished in a draft phase. They will go to
approval by our board on June 19 and the
annual report will be started after that.
Our quarter 4 report to ED&T will be
done with the approved audited
statements on June 19. Once that final
quarterly report has been accepted, we
will be working on the annual report and
it will be submitted to ED&T by August.
We have already started internal work on
the framework and getting photos and
everything ready, so the August delivery
date will not be a problem. It will go to
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the department in August so that it can be
tabled in the fall. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you.
On page 2 of your 2013-14 annual report,
it is indicated that your organization
“worked closely with Transport Canada
and the Canadian Wildlife Service on
new regulations they are implementing.”
Can you provide more detail concerning
this initiative? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Absolutely. I’ll start with the Transport
Canada changes in regulations. When a
cruise ship comes into a community, not
just in the north but in Canada, Transport
Canada has something in place called an
occasional marine use facility permit.

That program hadn’t been used in
Nunavut before. Last year, we worked
with Transport Canada to have that
project piloted in three communities in
Nunavut; lgaluit, Cambridge Bay, and it
was going to be in Resolute Bay. It was
carried out in lgaluit and it was quite
successful. Last year, because of ice
conditions in the High Arctic, not as
many cruise ships got into Resolute Bay
or Cambridge Bay as we were
anticipating. The couple that went had
this.

How this program works is Transport
Canada works with a local operator or
someone in the community. It may be a
staff member from the community or an
operator or someone that they designate
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as an occasional marine use facility
operator, and then that person works with
the cruise ship. The cruise ships are
anticipating that this person or entity will
charge them a fee to come in as an
occasional marine use facility operator
and then they just sort of ensure that the
cruise ship has something set up that they
can disembark safely and that passengers
know what’s going on. This program is
rolling out into more communities this
summer.

Transport Canada is working with people
in a variety of different communities. We
worked with the transportation side of
ED&T last year to get this in place with
Transport Canada and made them aware
of some of the challenges that they may
face in Nunavut because a cruise ship
coming in here is not the same as going
into a marine use facility in Halifax. We
worked with them to make sure that they
had realistic expectations based on the
facilities that communities here had.

The Canadian Wildlife Service changes
that we worked with them on, they have
changed some of their permitting
requirements, that to go into designated
wildlife or bird sanctuary areas
administered by them, operators have to
apply by March 31 and there is no
additional timeframe for that. That is very
prohibitive for some of our operators
because if somebody calls them and
wants to book a trip in June and they
want to go to the Queen Maud Bird
Sanctuary, it’s very limiting when they
say, “Well, you weren’t here by March
31. We can’t take you.”

We are working with them to try and find
a way that that program can be adapted to
meet the needs of Nunavut operators, that
if somebody comes at the last minute,
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you can’t just say, “We can’t do that,”
because a lot of our operators do go into
the wildlife areas and the bird sanctuary
areas. We are working with them that
there can be a supplemental date that
members can apply to get the licensing
and permits that they needed so that they

don’t turn away business. Thank you, Mr.

Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. I’ll
just ask that you just slow it down just a
notch for our translators. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you. |
will be able to ask you more questions
about destinations later. There are some
destinations that we do not agree with.
We would prefer that some of our lands
are not visited at all because we consider
them very precious.

With regard to my line of questioning, on
page 2 of your 2013-14 annual report, it
is indicated that the board of directors is
“a completely voluntary board.” Can you
describe what you mean by this? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. That will be my last
question on this topic. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. I’'m
sure it’s not your last question of the day.
Mr. Sakeeta.

Mr. Sakeeta: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
To answer the question about the
voluntary board, we take time out of our
personal lives to go to meetings and
attend board meetings for Nunavut
Tourism on top of our regular paying
jobs. It is completely voluntary. We do
not get paid and we don’t get honoraria.
It’s completely voluntary, out of our own
time.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Sakeeta. Ms.
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Dupuis, you wanted to supplement?

Ms. Dupuis: Further to that, the only
time that members receive any kind of
compensation is there are a couple of our
board members that are in other
communities. When we have somebody
travel from the community, their airfare,
hotel, and per diem for meals at the
government rate of per diem, they do
receive that to cover their expenses, but
there is no honorarium or anything paid;
just expenses covered. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak. Mr. Mikkungwak, my
apologies.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman
(interpretation ends) On page 2 of the
Nunavut Tourism’s 2013-14 annual
report, it is indicated that the board of
directors recently made changes to its
structure, including the reinstatement of
“regional seats.” Can you explain what
these changes were intended to achieve
and can you describe how effective they
have been? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The changes were brought about by
discussion at the board table that there
needed to be more Nunavut-based
representation on the board. Because of
some of the things that had happened in,
let’s say, the last 10 years, a number of
board members were southern-based and
it was giving a feeling to the board that
Nunavut businesses were not being
heard. To ensure that that was [not] going
to be the case, the board was changed.
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We went through a special meeting with
our membership and this was passed
through the membership in June of 2013.

Three regional representatives were put
on the board. These are seats for small
businesses, one small tourism business
per region. We also made the change to
add three new ex officio seats, one for
each regional Inuit association. We work
very closely with the RIAs on a number
of projects and felt that because tourism
is something that they deal with their
training endeavours and business
development endeavours, having them at
the table would be beneficial. This makes
sure that there is good Nunavut
representation on the board so that it is
not a board of just large, southern-based
tourism businesses. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. (interpretation) As of today, as
you were explaining that you’re going to
be increasing the number of board
members, can you indicate which seats
on Nunavut Tourism’s board of directors
are vacant? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Right now, we are working with the three
regional Inuit associations to fill their
seats. The Kivalliq seat has been the one
that we have been having trouble filling
and we are just finalizing. All three
regions are going to their board meetings
coming up to have the appointees
approved so that by the fall, the RIA
seats will all be filled.
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We have two other vacant seats right now
because of resignations that happened in
late March, the travel trade seat and the
hunting and fishing seat. Someone that
had been in the hunting and fishing seat
for a number of years is no longer with
the HTO that they were, so that seat is
vacant for the time being. Thank you.

Chairman: Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
You explained some of the board
member seats. You mentioned that
business representatives will be part of
the board. Are they all from Nunavut?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No, not all of our board members are
from Nunavut, but for the three seats that
we discussed previously, the new seats,
they are all Nunavut-based businesses.
Several of the other members are also
Nunavut-based, but not all board
members are Nunavut-based. For
example, we have a seat on the board
representing the cruise industry. There
are no Nunavut-based cruise companies,
so that seat will not be a Nunavut-based
seat just because of logistics, but we try
for as many Nunavut representatives as
possible. To ensure that happens, we
have a very detailed election process. We
do a call for nominations well in advance.

Three years ago, we instituted an
electronic voting system so that all of our
members can vote in the election for the
board of directors secretly and not have
to be at the AGM. This means that our
members that cannot attend the AGM in
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person still have a say on who is on the
board of directors. This has increased the
amount of voting in an election by over
49.59 percent, so our members are very
active in this process and it gives them
the opportunity to have a say no matter
what community they’re in and whether
they can attend the AGM or not. It has
given them all a feeling that they’re
involved in the process and it has worked
very well.

The system we are using has been
adopted by a couple other jurisdictions in
the country because it means that every
member has the opportunity to
participate. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. |
would like to ask another question. As of
today, how many beneficiaries of the
Nunavut Land Claims Agreement are
members of Nunavut Tourism’s board of
directors? Do you have beneficiaries as
board members? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, we have. Right now, we have one.
In the past, we have had more than that,
but we have had a resignation recently of
the hunting and fishing seat. It’s an
election process, so it’s nominations. In
the past, out of a nine-person board, at
one point, we did have four, but right
now, we have one out of an eight-person
board because of vacancies. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. I’'m
just going over some of the
documentation that was provided and |
see 13 seats on the board. Is there a
clarification maybe on that, Ms. Dupuis?

Ms. Dupuis: That was my mistake, Mr.
Chairman. There are 13 seats.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Out of the 13 seats, there’s
only one beneficiary. As of today, would
it be correct that the majority of your
board of directors do not live in the
territory? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No, that is not correct because a number
of the non-beneficiary members of the
board live in the territory. They live in
Cambridge Bay, they live in Baker Lake,
they live in other communities, but they
are not beneficiaries. We have a number
of people who live in Nunavut and have
been long-term Nunavut residents on the
board. We have an open election process
and we would love to have more
beneficiaries run for the board, but there
are long-term Nunavut residents. Right
now, on the board, because we have a
couple vacancies, so there are 11 seats
that are full. There are five long-term
Nunavut residents of that 11, plus the one
beneficary, so six of the seats are
Nunavut residents. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.
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Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. On page 14 of your 2013-14
annual report, it is indicated that Nunavut
Tourism staff visited 10 communities
during the 2013-14 fiscal year. It also
indicates that Nunavut Tourism’s goal is
to “visit at least 8 communities per year.”
Which communities did Nunavut
Tourism staff visit during the 2014-15
fiscal year? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
may not be fully accurate in my list
because | don’t have that right in front of
me. | could get that list for you accurately
for tomorrow.

We have visited Arviat, Rankin Inlet,
Cambridge Bay, Taloyoak, Baker Lake,
Pangnirtung, Qikigtarjuag, and Pond
Inlet, 1 believe. We have also tried seven
times in the last two years to get into
Sanikiluag and have either been
weathered out here or there, but it is on
our list to visit as soon as we can get in.
We have made significant attempts, but |
will get that list for you in detail
tomorrow. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
What was accomplished during these
community visits? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
When we go to a community, we usually
do a few activities. We will meet with all
of our members, we will meet with the
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economic development officer for anyone
who is interested in getting into tourism,
we will often do a presentation at the
high school on the potential for careers in
tourism, and hear if there are any issues
from the community about what’s going
on. What comes out of these visits is
often new members. For example, this
past February, we went into Cambridge
Bay and since February, there are two
new members, two new people getting
involved in tourism businesses from
Cambridge Bay.

We go and explain our insurance
program, the airline program that they
can access, and what other services we
can help them with and direct them in
how to get funding to assist in setting up
their business or what they need. The
point of a lot of the community visits is
to help establish new businesses, help
them get started, let them know the
resources that are available, and how we
can assist them in achieveing their goal
of having a successful tourism business.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. On page 18 of your 2013-14
annual report, it is indicated that Nunavut
Tourism “held discussions with various
marine insurance companies to
investigate a more cost effective
insurance plan for members.” As of
today, what is the status of Nunavut
Tourism’s work in this area? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
wish | could say that we have been
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successful; we haven’t. Marine insurance
is very costly in Nunavut because of
arctic waters. Anyone involved in
anything to do with the fishery or
anything is aware of how costly that can
be. We have a marine component to our
existing insurance program. What we
were looking for was to try and come up
with a cheaper alternative and we
couldn’t, so we discovered that what we
had was a very competitive product. We
do have something in place. | wish |
could say that we had found something
cheaper, but that doesn’t exist given the
conditions that people are operating in
here. Insurance companies consider arctic
waters to be high risk. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. On that same page again in
your report, it is indicated that Nunavut
Tourism met with the Kakivak
Association to discuss tourism projects in
Arctic Bay and Qikiqgtarjuag. As of today,
what is the status of these projects?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The status of these projects; Arctic Bay
has formed a community tourism
cooperative to further activities in that
community. From what | understand, it is
before the Minister of CGS for approval
for this company, and then it will be
formed and will do activities that the
community is sort of leading. We are
working with them on their marketing
plans and on their implementation plans,
but that project is at a point that it’s
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awaiting approval to be incorporated,
from what | understand.

The project in Qikigtarjuaq is still being
worked on. The gathering place that was
the first stage is completed and the
project continues. It is also involved with
Parks Canada and the plan is to have a
base camp outside Qikiqtarjuaq at the
north end of Auyuittuq National Park,
hopefully operational by the 2016 season
as a soft launch and then in full operation
by 2017. There are meetings continuing
and there are meetings in the community
about that June 15 and 16. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
How much funding is Kakivak
Association providing? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’m not aware of the exact details. We
work together as a group and | know
what we’re contributing to the project in
terms of staff time and support and
expertise and in terms of marketing
support with familiarization trips and that
sort of thing, but I’m not fully aware of
exactly what Kakivak’s financial
contribution is. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: For that particular
project area that you guys are working
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on, you haven’t come to a complete
financial analysis or financial total for
that particular project? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Both projects were going ahead whether
we participated or not. We were sort of
brought in as a consulting role into what
we could do to assist the project and
because we are not putting in financial
dollars, we have not been involved in the
budget discussions. Both projects involve
Parks Canada, Kakivak, and other areas,
but we don’t have money to put into that
kind of project other than marketing. We
have not been involved in the total
budgetary discussions, no. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. On the same page again of
your 2013-14 annual report, it is
indicated that Nunavut Tourism held
discussions with the Inuit Heritage Trust,
the Nunavut Arts and Crafts Association,
and Nunavut Film to “determine how to
work better together and utilize all our
resources cooperatively.” What specific
actions have been taken to accomplish
this goal? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We work with Inuit Heritage Trust in
some of the things that they do with
cruise ships. We also worked with them
on a new project that they’re working on
to deliver training into communities and
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that is something that will come under
the new training coordinator, who will
work with them to implement that
project.

We work with Nunavut Arts and Crafts
on a number of projects, working with
them to have artists” marketplaces in
communities. We have worked with them
to solve some of the challenges. For
example, last year in Pond Inlet, when
one of the cruise ships came in, there was
an artists’ marketplace that was set up in
the community. Unfortunately, the ATM
machines were broken at the time and so
the people on the cruise ship could not
access money to buy some of the art.
This is what was passed on to us in the
community.

What we have done for all of the
communities is we have obtained and
provided through NACA the Square
device that can take credit cards for arts
and crafts because each community has
that capability. They have credit card
facilities so that now if there is a cruise
ship that comes into a community, they
can now take credit cards for purchases.
We’re hoping that will extend the number
of purchases that can be made.

We work with Nunavut Film. When there
is a production company that contacts us,
we will contact them and figure out who
could better help them with logistics and
that sort of thing. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. This leads me right to my next
question. When you mention Nunavut
Film, on the same page, it is indicated
that you are working on a memorandum
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of understanding. As of today, has this
MOU been signed and what is it intended
to accomplish? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No, it has not been signed. One of our
board members is working on that and is
bringing it back to the table. We have
seen a draft of it. There were some
concerns about some of the language. It
has gone back and Nunavut Film is
reviewing with their board and we expect
it to come back to the table in the fall.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. When you indicate “this fall,”
is there a definite date as to when you
plan to sign the MOU? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No, we don’t have a definite date in
mind. | don’t know that their board
meetings have been set, so I’m not sure
exactly when it is going back to their
board. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. On that same page again, in
Nunavut Tourism’s 2013-14 annual
report, it is indicated that Nunavut
Tourism worked to obtain funding to
translate its website into French. Content
on Nunavut Tourism’s website is also
available in German. In what other
languages is Nunavut Tourism
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considering providing information for
potential visitors to the territory? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Right now, we are not looking at any
other languages. Our website is in
German, French, and English, which are
our three largest markets. Canada is the
largest market for Nunavut, actually for
all of the north, and then our subsequent
markets are Germany, France, and Great
Britain, so all three languages and for the
US, everything is covered in those three
languages. We do not have any other
plans at this time. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
That is very understandable because we
want to have the information overseas.
What about in Nunavut? There are
unilingual Inuktitut-speaking people in
the communities. How are you keeping
Inuit informed about your projects or
programs in their own language? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As | said before, our website is mainly an
advertising tool to bring people in. All of
our material that goes out to the
communities, whether it is our newsletter
or any other material for members, our
business aftercare booklet that was
developed, anything like that, that is all
translated. Our by-laws have been
translated into Inuktitut and Inuinnagtun,
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and when we go into a community for a
community visit, we arrange for a
translator to be available so that any
person in the community can
communicate with us.

Our actual website is a marketing tool for
outside of Nunavut to try and get those
people to come here. It has not been
translated into Inuktitut. It would be very
difficult to do that and rather costly.
Putting that money more towards training
and working with the members to have
products to bring clients in and develop
businesses was seen as a better usage of
funds. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak, your time is up. Just before
I go to the next name on my list, I would
like to revisit one of Mr. Mikkungwak’s
questions regarding the marine insurance
company investigation that Nunavut
Tourism has done.

You stated that you had a challenge
finding any cheaper options for outfitters
in Nunavut. Are you going to continue to
try and find cheaper options or is that off
the table now? Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Insurance has always been one of the
challenges for operators in Nunavut. We
set up our liability program and it has had
really good uptake. We are always
looking for ways that we can make that
more expensive and we are looking at
ways that we can meet the needs that
some of our members have.

For example, in the Kitikmeot, with some
of the land lease issues building on Inuit
owned lands, we are working with our
members, KIA, and an insurance
company to come up with sort of a group
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fund so that each individual business
does not have to secure a couple of
hundred thousand dollars worth of assets
tied up as a deposit.

We are always working on insurance and
ways that we can make it better suit our
members. If we can find something
better, we would love to be able to have it
available so that members can operate
more efficiently and in a cost-effective
way. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Just
one final question before 1 go to Ms.
Angnakak. On your website, it talks
about some member benefits. I’'m
assuming you guys have a member
package available. | wonder if, maybe
before proceedings tomorrow, you could
provide the Committee with a copy of it.
Ms. Angnakak, your question. | see you
nodding your head, Ms. Dupuis, so thank
you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Welcome to the gallery. |
want to touch base a little bit on what my
colleague, Mr. Enook, touched on and
that was about the annual reports and the
process that you go through in approving
the annual reports.

Has there ever been a time where you
have something in the annual report,
perhaps it says something that may be
sensitive towards government or against
government, where the department has
asked you to maybe reword something or
has there been like a disagreement over
the content in your annual reports at any
time and, if so, how did you deal with it?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak.
I’Il allow the question. That was very
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similar to a question that was asked
earlier by Mr. Enook, but Ms. Dupuis, if
you wanted to further clarify your earlier
response.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
There hasn’t been a time that I can recall
that that has happened, that they have
asked for a change in language or
anything like that. If it was a valid
concern, we view the annual report as an
opportunity to express what we have
done in the year and what the challenges
have been.

In our annual reports, for example, we
have talked about some of the challenges
of implementing the tourism strategy,
that some of the things that we were
supposed to do relied on the government
or another stakeholder doing something
and if they haven’t completed their part
of the plan, it’s hard for us to complete a
second part of a plan.

We have stated those things and we have
not ever been asked to correct that sort of
thing. As far as | can recall, there has not
been that sort of a situation. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. The other thing that | want to
just go back to a little bit as well is about
annual reports not being accessible to the
general public. You stated that one of the
biggest challenges you’re finding is to do
with your budget and numbers. Have you
ever asked how the other territories are
dealing with this? Do they have the same
challenges when it comes to being open
and transparent to the general public?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
What some of the other jurisdictions in
the country do is they put the annual
reports on their website, but not the
financial statements, and have a line or
something that “If you would like a full
report, including financial statements,
please request and we would be happy to
do that.”

As | stated, we are looking at taking that
sort of material out of the members’
section and leaving the members’ section
so they still have their area that they can
deal with the issues that they want and
have the annual reports on the website
with that sort of a request, the same as a
lot of other jurisdictions do, so that if
somebody wants a full report, we would
be happy to provide it. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. | wanted to also just touch up
a little bit on the board of directors. Most
of them are businessowners, the ones that
can vote. | know not all of them are, but a
lot of them are. When | look at that, |
wonder if that gives that businessowner
kind of like a one-up, more of an
advantage, because they’re on the board,
because they’re dealing with the direction
of what kinds of services. For example, if
you look at cruise ships, we don’t really
have people here like you say that do
that, but how many other businesses are
there out there that might be interested?
How do you open it up? How did that
one get picked? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The cruise ship seat had been put on the
board just before I came back. It was a
new seat put on in 2009. | believe it was
put on the board because there was a
realization that crew ships were a major
product here.

How we ensure that board members don’t
necessarily have inside information or get
more preferential treatment in terms of
familiarization tours and some of the
marketing things that we do, we have a
process for familiarization tours that if
media come to us, they have to have a
commitment for a story or a TV show or
whatever it is that reaches the
demographic we’re looking for. We work
with a couple freelancers, but they’re
very well known that we’re sure that
they’re going get us good value. All of
those requests come in, in the fall and we
have sort of a set way of doing it.

We make sure that our familiarization
tours are spread out across Nunavut in all
three regions and across type of business.
For example, every second year, we have
a familiarization tour that goes to a
hunting business because that’s a major
part of our tourism industry and every
second year, we make sure have one go
to a fishing business. We try and make
sure they go to all sorts of new businesses
and to different areas.

Because of where are board members
work, it just works out that they don’t get
preferential treatment because we make
sure that everything is spread out. We
have limited resources for marketing and
we have to make sure that all of Nunavut,
different types businesses, that the same
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person is not always benefiting from
what we can offer in terms of assistance.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Perhaps you can go in just a
little bit about how the chairman is
selected and how the board is selected,
then, because you have businesses on
there. How did they get there? Who
chose them? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak. |
believe she said that they have an
electronic voting system where all
members of tourism can vote even if then
are not attending the AGM. Would you
like further clarification? Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Yes. Well, I’m thinking
more about like if you have similar
businesses, for example, Mr. Sakeeta is
representing Canadian North, yet we
have First Air. Are they a member? Did
they choose the Canadian North rep to be
on the board? That’s what I’m trying to
get at. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you for that
clarification. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Our election process, 60 days before the
AGM, there is a call for nominations and
we have sectorial seats. Adamie
represents transportation. Transportation
could be airlines. It could be if we had a
bus company or someone like RL Hanson
that does provide other transportation
services. It is not an airline seat; it’s
transportation. People are nominated
from that sector. There is a hunting and
fishing sector seat, so it has to be
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somebody in that sector, in that business,
but not particular businesses.

Nominations are then called for and then
20 days before the AGM, the ballot is set
electronically with all the nominations
and people are allowed to put in a short
bio on why they think they would be
good on the board and what they could
contribute. Those are sent out to all
members electronically and all members
have opportunity to vote and our voting
rate has gone up substantially with the
electronic voting system, which is great
because it means people are engaged and
every one is having their say.

People pick who they want out of those
nominated seats for each sector. A variety
of businesses are nominated and it’s the
membership at large that chooses which
business they want to represent. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I’m going to go on to
something a little bit different. You have
an official blog on your website and it
hasn’t been updated since March 2014.
How many staff are currently responsible
for keeping your website up to date?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Good question, Ms.
Angnakak. I actually looked at that blog
earlier. There are only three posts on it
and it was just created September of *13.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The blog is one of our biggest challenges.
It was created to have an opportunity for
members to send us things to post. Every
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newsletter that goes out, we ask people to
send us material and we don’t always get
it. We do not even have one full-time
staff dedicated to the website. It is
someone about a quarter of the time.

The blog is there for members to put up
about their businesses. It’s an opportunity
we provide them on what they would like
to tell the world and we are not getting
feedback from members. It’s one of our
challenges. If someone has a suggestion
on how we can get them to participate, it
would be amazing because we would
love to see those blog posts change.

Because it’s something that’s there to talk
about businesses, we don’t want a staff
person writing about one business versus
another. That’s not fair to the businesses.
It’s there for the businesses to send us
stuff and we will be happy to put up.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. It
has come full circle. It was on beautiful
flowers in the arctic which are going to
be due anytime now. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. We talked about the annual
report. On page 18 of your annual report
for 2013-14, Nunavut Tourism indicated
that they had provided comments on
government projects that relate to
tourism, including proposed hydroelectric
development near lgaluit. What is
Nunavut Tourism’s position on
hydroelectric development near lgaluit?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.
Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

It’s funny you brought that up. I was
actually just looking at something that

ADCGANL*L, N®eP®eCDc De/LL% Ac MDY o
PN 0 DA NI N> *LE. NN®bo®
NePULALLC ANCD>*Ma PLA UL o<GC dr* Lo
ANCPR*™MNa cC. Ac*G*ado*d¢

A®ba AY®ND% CoAM*LenbA*a <L O,

SHGNDLPdC Mo sb>NES C¥a Cob>™L
N5ePLG AL O, oo AbdIPLe
0CPAPNNHCP* *IL 5 CALI D>RUC
K5ePLSeNCNA*LIPNENRDAL a M osb>NMo®
D>bD>boNe.

>RJc ASba AY®PNDC alloSb>No®
DaobseND>NLLC. CAP<c allosb>Ne<
Qllos® SbACNLAKC oCPPN*g®
>/ SHCC<eb o DUC,

Ab/PCSe OLNMNJO): Sdh*al™ D>A. A,
<L J<ASINENANL DA NS HJ % DY
0a.5*%J<Id g NP <o® L*arob. M
<J*abs®,

q*abs® (OLNANJC): Sd*al®, AbYRPCSh,
QSGICL®/DT Dobbe<dloSo DSbP>PsbbeCGeC
Cbd<c 2013-14-T Dodbe<dMo™re.

>C GBI NS DSb/LLLC LRLbduJSe
AN > GOInosT® <L Arslc
DLeINCDGAT T occ<dAbHCCP>a e L J5
Cod<dc 0a 2T >c G%DcnAbdC Shose
AFLSHSBE ATSIC BLINCDSATT® ASbOAC
Noda? sdyeal®, Ab/PCe®,

Ab/PCSe (OLANJC): Sgb>al™. [ DDA,

O>A OLNNJO): sdbeal®, AYRPCSe, sdhda st

42




came in about that this morning.

What our position was on this is that the
proposed sites affected fishing areas at
Bay of Two Rivers that many of our
members use in their commercial
operations and that tourists go to and that
it would affect part of the trail through
Katannilik Park. We put in a joint
submission with the Department of
Environment regarding how that would
be affected, how that trail would be
affected, and how that would affect
tourism and other business in the park.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I think there’s going to be
nothing easy about that project. Lots of
people are very concerned and it’s a
complex kind of thing to work out.

Another thing that we noted on your
annual report for 2013-14, it is indicated
that “Nunavut Tourism has taken a lead
on the Tourism Task Force for Nunavut.”
Who are the current members of this task
force? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
There are sort of two groups that meet.
There’s a small task force which are the
stakeholders that were involved in
developing the tourism strategy, which is
Nunavut Tourism, NTI, territorial parks,
Parks Canada, Economic Development
and Transportation, CanNor, and
Nunavut Arctic College. We meet on a
bi-monthly basis.

And then twice a year, we have a large
stakeholders’ meeting which includes any
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group that has indicated an interest in
tourism. It brings in other departments, it
brings in all of the other NGOs, and it
brings in different government
departments, Culture and Heritage, Inuit
Heritage Trust, Carrefour Nunavut, a
variety of things. The last large
stakeholders” meeting was held at our
tourism conference which just took place
in March and there were over 120 people
in the room of that large stakeholder

group.

The small group meets bi-monthly. The
large group meets twice a year. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Out of the task force meetings,
what kinds of reports have been produced
and will they be available for us to look
at, if you have such reports? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We don’t really do reports from the
meetings. There are minutes from some
of the meetings.

The main purpose of the tourism task
force is to ensure that the tourism
strategy is still being worked on and that
the goals in that strategy are moving
ahead. It’s sort of an opportunity for the
people at the table to say what challenges
they have working on their own
components and other components that
need to keep moving forward. The task
force group is meeting to make sure that
that strategy is being followed and is
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actually being implemented.

There are some minutes from some of the
meetings that I don’t have with me, but I
would be happy to get it for the
Committee. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Once again in your annual
report, Nunavut Tourism has indicated
that it has worked with the Tourism
Industry Association of Canada (TIAC)
and they’re working on “issues that affect
the industry nationally,” and that a
“Tourism Town Hall” was planned to be
held in Nunavut in the fall of 2014. Was
this accomplished and who attended?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, this happened on, I’m going to say
October 24, but it was a Monday just
after our AGM. I’'m not sure of the exact
date.

Representatives of both the Tourism
Industry Association and the Canadian
Tourism Commission (CTC) were here
and we had 34 people interested in
tourism, some of our members that we
brought in, so there were people from all
three regions. We tied this event to our
AGM because we already had people
here.

We were very proud to have 34 people.
When they did the same event, it goes
across the country. In the NWT, they had
six people show up for their meeting. The
fact that we had 34 people interested and
who came to the meeting, we were very
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happy with that turnout, but yes, it did
happen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Out of that meeting, what was
accomplished? Were new directions set
or what kinds of things did you talk about
and as a result, what are the next steps?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
What was accomplished out of that
meeting, these town hall meetings were
more of an informational session for
jurisdictions around the country to find
out what the CTC and TIAC were doing
in terms of some of their priorities and
issues moving forward.

I will be perfectly honest. We had met
with the national organization in advance
and indicated to them some of the
challenges of tourism in Nunavut because
some of our priorities are not the same as
southern Ontario with cross-boarder
traffic and that sort of thing. The people
that they sent did not come prepared to
talk about the issues in the north and we
made it very clear that they had not come
prepared to talk about the issues in the
north and that our issues were completely
different than other jurisdictions. We
made it very clear to them. Because of
that, some things that we have been
working with Saskatchewan, Manitoba,
and Newfoundland on for a couple of
years now are coming to fruition. | just
came back from Rendez-vous Canada, a
large CTC event, and we have provincial
meetings.

One of the things that we have been
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working on for a couple of years is the
Canadian Tourism Commission, who
markets Canada internationally, has never
recognized hunting and fishing as a
tourism product before. They are now
and we anticipate that by this fall, they
will have new programs for hunting and
fishing operators to buy into in their
advertising thing and they will recognize
hunting and fishing on their website. It
has taken us a few years, but we’ve got
things that are important to the north and
northern parts of the country recognized.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis.
(interpretation) Ms. Angnakak, are you
done? Mr. Shooyook.

Mr. Shooyook (interpretation): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. One of my
colleagues already asked the question I
was going to ask. I would like to make a
comment about the opening comments.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | just want to
understand this fully. Please feel
welcome to the Committee.

The core operating funding provided to
Nunavut Tourism by the Department of
Economic Development and
Transportation has increased from $1.8
million in the 2014-15 fiscal year to
$3.08 million in the 2015-16 fiscal year.
This represents a 70 percent increase.
Why has your funding been increased
suddenly up to $3.08 million? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Shooyook.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The main reason that there was an
increase in funding is to implement items
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identified in the tourism strategy.
$500,000 of that increase will go towards
a Nunavut branding campaign, not
tourism but overall Nunavut branding.
This is something that was identified in
the tourism strategy and we have been
tasked with making it happen starting this
year, 2015-16, and that’s a big part of the
increase.

Another part of the increase are two new
positions identified in the tourism
stragety, one being for a training
coordinator. This person is going to be
tasked with coordinating all of the
tourism training for Nunavut. This will
mean that they will identify what training
opportunities are available, what training
members and communities need, where
the funding sources to deliver that
training may come from, and what other
obstacles or challenges there they may be
training, like do people need certain
courses in advance of taking another
course. This position has been advertised
and the individual will start on Monday.
We have a database that they will
populate and have done a training needs
survey with all of our members and
communities already.

The other position that will be started
probably in the fall is someone working
to attract more meetings and conferences
to Nunavut. Nunavut Tourism will not be
coordinating these confrences. That will
be left up to our members that do that as
a business, and we have several of those,
and we hope bringing more meetings and
conferences to Nunavut will result in
more businesses being able to be
established. This person will start by
trying to attract national organizations
that have Nunavut members.

We have been doing this in a very small
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way for a couple of years and have had
great success with attracting four or five
major national conferences that bring in
business to the territory and help local
businesses. When we have a conference,
if it’s held here in lgaluit, we work with
communities to offer pre- and post-trips,
which we have done into Kimmirut, Cape
Dorset, and Pangnirtung with the
confrences that have been here in the past
few years.

The other large substantial amount that is
in that increase is $350,000 for market
readiness. What this means is we will be
offering for the first time in about seven
years product development workshops
for our members to actually help them
develop new products, which is
something that is needed to keep the
tourism industry here growing. There is
an RFP out right now. It closes next
Monday for product development
workshops.

The first workshop will be developed and
offered at our AGM in November. The
workshops will be small workshops of a
maximum of six participants and each
participant will come out of that
workshop with a new product that they
have worked on and have developed
during that. There will be three additional
workshops held throughout the territory
before the end of the fiscal year, one per
region and one in North Baffin.

The other small amounts of increase
include increases in rent and that sort of
thing. There is also an increase to our
insurance budget and that is because we
have been asked by the Government of
Nunavut to insure the art installations at
the visitor centre here in lgaluit and in
Cambridge Bay, as well as the art
installations in the pedestals at the Igaluit
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airport, which have not been covered on
the Government of Nunavut insurance
policy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis.
Although that was a very detailed
answer, I’m sure there will be detailed
questions when we get to that section,
upcoming. Mr. Shooyook.

Mr. Shooyook (interpretation): Thank
you for your answer. | have another
guestion. Nunavut Tourism receives
additional funding from the Canada
Northern Economic Development
Agency. The Nunavut government,
Nunavut Tunngavik Incorporated, and
Nunavut Tourism are partners. Do you
receive more funding on top of that?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis, did
you understand that question?

Ms. Dupuis: Not entirely, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Shooyook, could you
maybe repeat your question, please.

Mr. Shooyook (interpretation): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. I’m just following
the documents. Nunavut Tourism
receives additional funding from the
Canada Northern Economic Development
Agency. The Nunavut government,
Nunavut Tunngavik Incorporated, and
Nunavut Tourism are partners. As |
stated about the funding, I’m talking
about the Canadian government, Nunavut
government, and NTI. Do you receive
more funding on top of that? | hope that
you got that question. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Shooyook. |
think that clarified it a little bit. Ms.
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Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
think I have the question. We receive our
core funding from the Government of
Nunavut Department of Economic
Development and Transportation.

We apply for specific funds under the
Canada Northern Economic Development
Agency, CanNor. The money we receive
from CanNor is primarily used for
marketing, training, and research.

We also work with the Department of
Culture and Heritage and apply and get
funding to run programs in our visitor
centres, both for visitors and for
community members. Nunavut Tourism
operates the three regional visitor centres
here in Igaluit, Cambridge Bay, and
Rankin Inlet.

We also work with the regional Inuit
associations on a project-specific basis. A
lot of times, it involves training or
receiving money to bring members from
different communities into Iqgaluit or
other communities for training
opportunities that are being presented.

We work with NTI, but we do not receive
any funding from NTI. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I hope that answers the
question.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis.
(interpretation) Mr. Shooyook, are you
done? Mr. Savikataaq.

Mr. Savikataag: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Most of the topics in this
section have been covered, but | just want
to get a few clarifications.

On the topic of membership, what are the
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criteria to become, not a board member,
but a member? Thank you.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
To become a Nunavut Tourism member,
you must be in the tourism business and
we have, in our by-laws, that all members
must be licensed and insured. If you are a
tourism operator, we know that you are
licensed through the Department of
Economic Development and
Transportation and have met their
standards and that you have liability
insurance for when you are taking clients
out.

Our membership is broad in terms of
what is considered tourism. It includes
taxi companies, some stores in some
communities, some other types of
businesses, but they’re all involved in the
tourism industry in some way and impact
with visitors. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. In that criteria, you have to be
in the tourism business, but do you have
to be in the tourism business in Nunavut
or just a tourism business anywhere?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Savikataag.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
You have to be involved in the tourism
industry in Nunavut. Cruise companies
that may not be based in Nunavut that are
involved in the tourism in Nunavut
because they are bringing tourists to
Nunavut can be members. Somebody
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who is involved in a taxi company in
Ottawa isn’t going to be a member.

We do have some members that are
Ottawa hotels that our members work
with as a partner as part of their package
and will have discounted rates at those
hotels for when they’re bringing
somebody up here that has to stay in a
hotel in Ottawa. You have to be involved
in some way with visitors coming to
Nunavut. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Are there any fees involved to
be a member? Is there a membership fee?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
There is a membership fee. For a small
business, it is $60. This has not gone up
in 15 years. For a larger business, it’s
$160, but we have a marketing assistance
program that we raise money from our
sales of items at visitor centres. If you’re
a small business member, your
membership fee is $60.

If you are doing marketing and you can
provide receipts, you can apply to us to
get assistance of up to $1,000 back. For
small businesses, it’s a very good
program. We have a small membership
fee up front just so that there is
something to ensure that people are in a
business, but there are opportunities for
small businesses to get that money back
tenfold. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Savikataag.
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Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Just to revisit the marine
insurance again, you said that it was
really high and it’s high risk by the
insurance companies. Have there been
claims put in that you are aware of by
operators within the marine insurance
plan? Thank you.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
This is where 1I’m going to sound really
old, but there was a claim put in for a
fatality for tourists in 1995, a boating
accident, and that has affected some
things here, plus in what they consider
arctic waters, there have been other
claims a little farther south in Canada that
affects the overall insurance industry.
They sort of set where they consider it to
be arctic waters, whether it’s up here or
not. We often get lumped in with other
jurisdictions.

There has only been ever one claim in
Nunavut that | know of and that was an
accident off of Clyde River in September
of 1995. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. The reason | asked if there
were any claims was that... . Have there
ever been any thought given into self-
insurance? The hamlets have self-
insurance and it takes a while before the
money is built up, but if there are no
claims from anybody, then the money
just keeps building up. That would be, in
my mind, one way around the high
insurance and the members would pay
into this fund that if no one used would
only grow, but I’m aware that it would be
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risky in the beginning. Have there been
any thoughts about that of self-insurance?
Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Savikataag.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That hasn’t been looked at for the marine
insurance, but it has for a liability
insurance program, I’m going to say,
about eight to ten years ago.

What the challenge was is that in the
beginning, if there were, let’s say, one or
two claims, there would be a huge
problem and because the marine
insurance will go towards that, liability is
going to be the big issue with it. Even if
the program had been building up for
four or five years, if there were a couple
of accidents that involved numerous
people, the fund probably couldn’t cover
the costs and it would leave people liable.
Because we have international visitors,
that can be a bit iffy.

It is not something that we would
certainly reccomend to our members. We
want to make sure that they’re covered
and that they’re not putting themselves in
a situation that is going to be detrimental.
Members can get insurance under the
insurance liability program that we have
and under ED&T’s Small Business
Support Program, they can apply for
assistance with those premiums. They’re
still high, but they’re absolutely covered
and are not putting themselves at future
risk.

That is not something we have looked
into. It is something we could, but based
on the other instances when we have
looked into it, it would probably not be
advisable. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Savikataaqg.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I’m going back to your annual
report here. On page 19 of your annual
report, it indicates that “Nunavut Tourism
is working closely with Territorial
Parks...on plans for new parks and
collaborative marketing efforts.” Can you
describe what specific initiatives are
currently underway with respect to new
territorial park developments in Arviat
and Sanikiluag? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Savikataag.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The territorial Department of
Environment is working on new parks in
both of those communities. How we get
involved with the parks’ development is
in terms of what type of tourist activities
could take place in the park and work
with outfitters when there’s a new park to
develop products that they could utilize
the new park. We’re not involved in the
establishment of the park.We work with
territorial parks to ensure that the asset
for the community can now be utilized
well by community members for future
business endevours, but we are not
involved in the actual structuring or
designation of a park. That’s the
Department of Environment. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Savikataaqg.

Mr. Savikataag: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. On that same page in the same
report, it also indicates that “Money put
into the 2014-15 budget was cut, leading
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to discussions between Nunavut Tourism
and the Government of Nunavut...” Can
you explain what were the specific
circumstances of this matter and how it
was resolved? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Savikataag.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: | believe what this refers to
is that in our 2014-15 budget, we had
requested the increase for the training
position, the meetings and conference
position, and the increase in insurance to
cover art assets. When the 2014-15
budget was approved, those items were
not included. That meant that we could
not get started on the training
coordination and training program that
we had planned as early because the
money had not been approved in the
budget. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis.
(interpretation) Mr. Savikataaq, are you
done? (interpretation ends) | have no
more names on my list, but I’ve got a
couple of questions before we go for
break and start with the next section.

In one of your responses, you spoke to
insurance for different artefacts at visitor
centres and specifically the Iqgaluit airport
here. I was under the impression that the
Government of Nunavut owned those
artefacts. Are there artefacts that are by
owned by Nunavut Tourism? Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The artefacts are all owned by the
government, but they do not have a
replacement insurance on them or from
what I understand, a replacement
insurance program in place. They have
asked us if it could go onto our insurance
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program, which we can easily do. There’s
just going to be a cost associated with
that. The Government of Nunavut owns
the assests at the visitor centres and at the
airports. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis.
Sorry. For justification, | understand that
there’s a cost associated with that. I’'m
assuming ED&T is funding you for that
cost. Was there a cost analysis done on
why they would insure government
owned artefacts through an outside
entity? That just doesn’t make sense to
me. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
don’t have an answer on that. | know that
we got three quotes for insurance when
we were asked to do this, but why
exactly, I’m not sure. We were just told
that they weren’t covered under
government insurance and they would
like to have the art assets covered and
could we add it. We can do that, we got a
quote, and are proceeding with doing it as
we have been requested. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. |
guess that’s a question I’ll have to ask the
Minister. There was also some discussion
with the liability insurance and the
investigation into marine insurance
availability versus cost. Within your
liability insurance from the member
benefits, if | recall, | neglected to grab the
printout before | came in here, but it
talked about that there are insurance
options available to your membership.
What type of research was going into that
as far as cost benefits? What type of
guarantees can you give your
membership that that’s the lowest cost
available to them? Ms. Dupuis.
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Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
When | came back to Nunavut Tourism
in 2009, there was no liability program in
place at all, so we went out shopping to
get the best deal or to get any deal.
Liability insurance in the tourism
industry is challenging for jurisdictions
across the country and we wanted to
ensure that the program we had in place
was comprehensive, at a good cost, and
would meet members’ needs. We talked
to a number of insurance companies and
worked with Nunavut Insurance, who
went out onto the open market looking
for what we wanted. They contacted a
number of insurance wholesalers that
offered this type of product.

The company that we use is a company
called Sports-Can. They also carry the
tourism liability programs for BC,
Ontario, and a couple of other
jurisdictions in the country. The program
is underwritten by Lloyd’s of London, so
there’s a security that it’s a solid
program. It is also quite cost-effective.

One of the other things, when we were
looking for a program that our members
had requested, is that not only just be a
liability program but that they have the
opportunity to insure their boats,
snowmobiles, and storage sheds or other
products all in one insurance program
because they were finding it challenging
to have to deal with two or three different
insurance companies to meet all of their
insurance needs.

We also wanted to work with someone
that would help us come up with a
simplified insurance application program
because some of our members found the
insurance application program daunting.
With what some of the companies they
had dealt with in the past were asking for,
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they almost gave up. We have worked
with the insurance company that the
application is a simplified two-page form
that was easily translated and all of the
insurance documents that the members
need are available in both languages, in
simple language, and they are finding
them easy to use.

The first year we had the program, we
thought it would be a success if we had
six members participate. The first year
alone, we had 12. They see a merit in the
program and the cost is quite competitive
to what they were getting. | will give you
an example. One of our members, before
this program, was paying almost $8,000
in insurance. With this program, they are
just paying just over $3,500. Member
outfitters that have had insurance
products in the past have seen that this is
a very cost-effective and simple program
for them to use and it provides what they
need. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you for that detailed
response, Ms. Dupuis. | guess just the
latter part of my question is: what type of
guarantees can you provide to your
membership that this is the lowest
available for the best quality insurance?
When you’ve got a new member that’s
coming in and you gave me an example,
I’ll give you an example. This was before
I was involved in this proceeding, but
speaking to someone outside of Igaluit,
they were talking about insurance.

The insurance that they received or the
quote that they received through the
organization that was associated with
Nunavut Tourism was substantially
higher than what they ended up paying
through an outside party. Maybe they
went through the challenge of filling out
the maybe more complicated paperwork,
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but it was a fairly substantial difference.
I’m going to say it was almost half the
amount that was quoted through
whatever insurance, the Lloyd’s of
London or whatever the insurance
company is that you’re dealing with right
now.

I’m just looking for some clarification for
your membership that they are getting the
best value for their investment in their
insurance. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We do a spot check usually once a year
on a comparable shopping basket, but if
there are companies that are offering
products lower, if you could let me know
what company that was or something, we
could certainly look into it because we
want this to be competitive. We do check
up on it periodically and what we have
found is that it is still a good value.

One of the unique features in this
insurance plan is that a lot of our
members do different activities at
different times of the year. Like in the
winter, they may do snowmobiling or
dogsledding and then in the summer,
they’re doing hiking or boating activities.
The insurance program that we are
working with will let them insure
activities for three to six months,
whatever they need, that they don’t have
to insure the dogsledding activity for the
full year, which is one of the challenges
with some other programs that we found.
Members have had to insure a seasonal
activity for a full year.

This is one of the things that have made
our plan useful for members, but if there
is information on cheaper plans, we
would be happy to look into it. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Like
I said, it was a fairly innocuous
conversation | was having with someone,
so | don’t know the details, but if I recall
correctly who it is, I’ll get in touch with
them and make that recommendation.

I just had a name added to my list. Mr.
Shooyook.

Mr. Shooyook (interpretation): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. | didn’t find what |
was looking for, but it’s something that
I’m concerned about regarding the
archaeological sites, the old sod houses,
and there are some old sod houses that
were made by the Tuniit. There are old
archaeological sites on Nunavut lands
that have not been disturbed or damaged,
and they have to be preserved and
protected. Does Nunavut Tourism have
anything to do with the archaeological
sites around Nunavut or do you help to
preserve and protect those archeological
sites that have not been disturbed or
damaged yet? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Shooyook.
I’ll allow the question. It will be more
involved and I’m sure there are some
more detailed questions in the business
plan section. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We do not have anything to do directly
with the permitting or security around
archaeological sites. However, this is an
issue that a number of our members from
communities have raised and it was
raised at our tourism conference.

One of the things that we have
recommended is that there be certain
archaeological sites that are set as “no
access” based on community consultation
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and what the communities want. That is
something that we entirely encourage and
support. We have nothing directly to do
with that, but it is something that we are
absolutely in favour of. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Shooyook.

Mr. Shooyook (interpretation): I’ll ask
another question later. That’s it.

Chairman: Thank you. We’re just
waiting for some materials to be
delivered into the lounge area, so we will
defer our break just for a couple of more
minutes. | just have a couple of more
questions.

In one of your responses, Ms. Dupuis,
you mentioned the marketing assistance
program, that it has a limit of up to
$1,000 and that the funds generated for
that program come from sales of goods,
souvenirs, and things in the visitor centre.
To me, that’s kind of a limited revenue
source. I’m just wondering: have there
ever been times when you’ve had to deny
members money from the marketing
assistance program? Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
wish | could say that there has been.
Usually most years, we have about
$22,000 available and unfortunately most
years, it’s not even fully subscribed. It is
something we encourage all of our
members to subscribe to and that we put
out in our newsletter three or four times a
year leading up to the due date, which is
in January. We would like to see it fully
subscribed. That has not been the case in
the past, but the money is there. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you for that response,
Ms. Dupuis. Maybe just to clarify for
myself and 1I’m sure for some of your
membership that is watching the
proceedings here, is it as basic as just
submitting receipts? Let’s say if | get
business cards made and it cost $50 and |
submit my receipt, I’ll get $25 back. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
There is a simple one-page form to fill
out, which is sort of your name, your
business, and your business licence
number under ED&T, basic information,
and then you submit your receipts. The
intent of this program is to help smaller
businesses with exactly what you
described: business cards, websites,
simple brochures, and all that sort of
thing.

For some of our smaller members, we
have even helped them design ads that
they have placed in our travel planner or
in magazines. If they don’t have the
resources to have the design done, we
have had staff do it for them to try and
get them into situations where they can
take advantage of that marketing
assistance and do marketing. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Just
one final question: are the guidelines of
that policy clearly laid out to your
membership? Just a confirmation. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, they’re on our website and when we
go into communities, we encourage
people to take advantage of it. It’s listed
in the member benefits and we remind
people in our newsletter, which is a
monthly newsletter, several times a year
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that the program is in place and please
take advantage of it. That’s what it’s
there for. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. |
won’t touch too much on the website. |
think most of my Committee colleagues
have mentioned that there are some
challenges and I think you acknowledged
that there are some challenges with the
website. | have gone on the website and |
have actually on other jurisdictions to
compare. | think there’s a little bit more
work that you guys are planning on doing
in that and I look forward to seeing some
results from that. That was just a
comment.

I do have one final question regarding the
board makeup. From some of the
governing bodies that are involved in
your board makeup, you said that there’s
GN representation on there. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We had Government of Nunavut
representation, a member from Economic
Development and Transportation until, |
believe, it was 2012 when the ED&T rep
was taken off all NGO boards. What we
do is meet with ED&T at our board
meeting quarterly to present our quarterly
report. They send representatives at that
time, but we do not have a government
representative on the board at all times.
That was a decision made by the
Government of Nunavut Economic
Development and Transportation.
Nunavut Tourism would welcome a
member at any time. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. I’m
just going from some of the materials that
we were provided here and | was under
the impression that there was a current
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member of your board that is a
government representative from the
Department of Environment regarding
territorial parks. Is he still a member of
the board currently? Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, the representative for territorial
parks is David Monteith. David, whether
involved through ED&T and its many
transformations over the years, has been
involved in Nunavut Tourism from day
one since 1996, so he has a long
corporate history. Yes, there is a
Department of Environment territorial
parks representative on the board
presently. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. |
would just like to take a step back to your
comment that in 2012, ED&T
representation was stopped. To me, |
believe that was somewhere around the
same time that the tourism division was
created within ED&T.

Was the division kind of in a replacement
when you’re talking about the quarterly
meetings and what type of information
sharing and reporting structures are
achieved at that? I’m just a little bit
confused that one of your core funding
departments doesn’t have board
representation, yet every other entity that
provides funds or has logistical input into
the board matters has representation. I’m
just a little confused with that.

Maybe if you could just give me a little
bit more history. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As | mentioned, it was not our decision to
have the ED&T rep leave the board. |
believe that was something that was
decided in the department and was done
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for all the NGOs. As we have other
funding partners sitting on the board
now, we would welcome the return of an
ED&T rep if that was requested. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. I’ll
leave it at that. I’ll recognize the clock
and we will return back with the 2015-16
budget and organizational structure. We
will take a 15-minute break. Thank you.

>>Committee recessed at 15:37 and
resumed at 15:54

Chairman: Welcome back, everybody.
We will continue on. The next section we
are going to be reviewing is the 2015-16
budget and organizational structure. The
first name | have on my list, Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. The core operating funding
provided to Nunavut Tourism by ED&T
increased from $1.8 million in the 2014-
15 fiscal year to [$3.08] million in the
2015-16 fiscal year. This represents a 70
percent increase. Can you provide a
detailed breakdown of how this increased
funding will be spent? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak.
Even | myself earlier, when Mr.
Shooyook asked the question, | wasn’t
really in the budget mode, so I’ll allow
the question even if nothing else, for my
own benefit. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No problem.

The increase falls into two or three main
categories. A large portion of it,
$500,000, in the detailed line item budget
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that we provide, shows up as a marketing
campaign. What that line item for
$500,000 is, in the Nunavut Tourism
strategy, there is identified to do an
overall brand awareness campaign for
Nunavut, not tourism but Nunavut, and
that’s what that $500, 000 is going
towards.

There is also $350,000 identified under
marketing for market readiness. This is
going into product development to work
with the regional Inuit associations. We
produced a business aftercare booklet in
the 2014-15 fiscal year. Working with the
RIAs, we plan to produce a video to
compliment that workbook based on
requests from the industry and our
members. That is also part of that
$350,000, as well as other product
development and training opportunities
for members. That will be the first
product development activity that we
have done since 2008-09 because in
2010, the product development function
reverted to the government. We have
gotten it back and we have plans to do
that.

The increase for two staff positions, one
is the training coordinator that will work
to ensure that communities have access to
training and identify other potential
sources of funds. We have also secured
money from CanNor for training that will
deliver some of the modules of their
tourism program in communities. It has
been identified to deliver two of those
modules per region in this fiscal year.
This was identified in the action plan of
the tourism strategy as well.

The meetings and conference person will
work to attract conferences to Nunavut.
It’s not something that will happen
instantaneously, but our goal for the
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2016-17 fiscal year, there will be at least
two new conferences coming. Because
there’s a planning cycle, we can’t
necessarily do it immediately.

The additional charges are for the
insurance at the airport. There’s a
substantial increase in insurance. The
other increases are minor increases for
rent, communications, and just costs of
operation and increases that go along
with that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Duspuis.
Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Do you think that this is a
one-time ask or do you anticipate
requesting the same amount in the
following years to come? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The increase for staffing, to keep the
training and meetings and conference
functions going, that will be an ongoing
ask. I would hope that the training and
product development would be an
ongoing ask to get back into being able to
provide support for smaller Nunavut-
based community businesses to grow.

The ask for the national marketing
campaign, there will probably be an ask
every year to keep this up. The plan was
for five years. The increase should not be
as substantial in coming years for that
because there has to be some material
developed and that sort of thing in the
first year that then will be rolled out and
utilized again in coming years. The initial
ask for $500,000 for that marketing
should decrease.
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The other requests, we are hoping, will
stay the same so that the industry in
Nunavut can continue to grow and this is
part of the tourism strategy action plan
that was passed by the Legislative
Assembly in 2013. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: | want to go on to
something else, partnership agreements
that you have with the Department of
Economic Development and
Transportation. It requires your firm,
Nunavut Tourism, to submit a draft
business plan and budget no later than
July 30 of this year. As of today, how far
along is this work? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
It is being worked on and it’s going to
committee in our board in a draft stage. It
will go to a board meeting June 19 for
approval, but we anticipate having it
submitted to the department like June 25,
as soon as it’s past our board. It will be
well submitted before July. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. When you work with your
annual budget, is it something that you
work with the Department of Economic
Development and [Transportation] on
before the final is submitted? Do they
know what’s coming up? What kind of
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say do they have in regard to your
budget, if any? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We work with them, let’s say, for the
items that will come from the tourism
strategy. We have been identified in the
tourism strategy action plan two years
ago of who is responsible for what and
we ensure that that is still the plan, that
we are taking forth and that is partially at
the tourism task force stage, and then we
let them know if we anticipate any
significant increases in any operational
expense.

Most of the items in our core budget are
either operational or are because of the
tourism strategy. It’s not looking at any
activities outside of that. Additional
marketing activities or research things
like the exit survey we are doing right
now, we apply to CanNor for funding for.
The department has some say. They
know what’s coming and they can
comment if they think we should change
something. Let’s say for example, this
year, the request to cover insurance came
from the department to add that to the
budget, but that is the sort of input that
they have.

Most of our budget is based on sort of the
tourism strategy and making that happen
and the resources we need to do that.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. The current partnership
agreement that you have for the 2015-16
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fiscal year was not signed until few days
ago, May 21, 2015, and that was over 50
days after the start of the new fiscal year
and the formal commitments of the
agreement. The 2014-15 partnership
agreement was not signed until July 21,
2014 and that was over 100 days after the
start of the new fiscal year. What has
caused these delays in signing these
agreements? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Excellent question, Ms.
Angnakak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
can only address that from our side. We
signed it within six hours of receiving it,
so we did not receive it until May 20.
That isn’t a question I can answer. That is
usually the type of cycle that we as well
as most NGOs deal with, but we sign and
execute as soon as we receive the
document. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. That
might be another good question for the
Minister in the next sitting. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: I’ll let somebody else
ask some questions. Thank you.

Chairman: Mr. Mikkungwak, just before
I go on to you, Ms. Angnakak brought up
the issues of partnership agreements.

On page 14 of the partnership agreement,
it speaks to the Department of ED&T and
tourism. It indicates that the Tourism and
Cultural Industries Division of the
department is to assess the reports and
deliverables of Nunavut Tourism. The
results of the assessments are to be given
to the department’s director a minimum
of several days prior to the quarterly
assessment meeting with the executive
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director and the board of the
organization.

My first question there would be: when
was the most recently quarterly
assessment meeting held?

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The third quarterly assessment meeting
was held in March at the time of the
tourism conference at an in-person board
meeting, and it was scheduled at that time
so that it could be at an in-person board
meeting and not just people on the phone.

The material is provided to ED&T
usually 14 working days in advance of
those meetings. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Are
you provided with copies of the
department’s quarterly assessment
reports? Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No, we do not receive copies of the
assessment report. At the quarterly
meetings, if they have questions or
concerns, they bring them verbally, but
we do not see a copy of the assessment.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you for that, Ms.
Dupuis. Before we adjourn today, I’ll ask
the Minister’s office to provide the
Committee with these in time for
tomorrow’s hearing. I’ll report back to
the Committee at the start of tomorrow’s
meeting with the Minister’s response.
Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. |
would like to ask about a couple of
issues. The (interpretation ends) market
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readiness (interpretation) that you are
talking about and the (interpretation
ends) marketing campaign, when you
look at those two budget line areas,
market readiness and market campaign,
those two are substantial amounts.
Market readiness, $350,000, and market
campaign, $500,000, is that within the
territory of Nunavut or is that outside of
Nunavut? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The $500,000 for the marketing
campaign is for outside of Nunavut as an
awareness campaign of Nunavut as a
territory, not tourism. This will not be
aimed at necessarily just attracting
tourists to the territory. It will be similar
to the campaign that was done by the
Government of Nunavut tied to the
Olympics on sort of “work, live, invest”
to try and attract people to move here,
trying attract investment here, and trying
to attract people to visit. It is an overall
awareness campaign. That money will be
spent to market Nunavut outside
Nunavut.

The market readiness money is all for
product development workshops and
training aimed at our members in the
communities within Nunavut. That
$350,000 will benefit Nunavut
communities. There is an RFP out right
now for the product development
workshops. | don’t know whether that
will be awarded to a company inside or
outside Nunavut, but it is aimed at
training people in Nunavut and helping
them develop products for small tourism
businesses. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
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Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. When you’re looking at the
market campaign, are you focused on or
has the board already decided what type
of a campaign? Will it be a hard copy
campaign or a media type campaign?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
What we have suggested is there be a
committee set up of representatives of
different departments of the Government
of Nunavut to work on this and to come
up with the priorities and what they see
as the key message as being, and then we
will put together what we think will be an
effective way to deliver those messages
and come back to the committee. We are
hoping that that committee will be
formed in the month of June so that we
can get the materials together over the
summer and come back with them in
September for execution starting in the
fall.

This is not something that we’re going to
be the coordinating delivery agent for this
campaign, but it will have input, we are
hoping, from different government
departments. We are not determining the
primary message or anything like that.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Going back to the
market readiness program, that funding
there, $350,000, as you indicated, is
going to help the small businesses within
Nunavut. Is that across the territory in
Nunavut and how has the Nunavut
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Tourism board notified small businesses
within Nunavut? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
For market readiness, there will be a
minimum of four product development
workshops offered in Igaluit at our AGM
when we have members come in from all
regions. It will be the first one.

Probably starting in January, because
from our members we have heard that
January-February is a good time to
deliver things in other communities
because it’s not a busy time for tourists,
we will offer one in Rankin Inlet for the
Kivallig. Cambridge Bay in February is
tied to the Kitikmeot Trade Show
because some of our members from other
Kitikmeot communities come to
Cambridge Bay at that time. One, we’re
determining whether it will be in
Qikigtarjuaq, Pond Inlet, or Arctic Bay,
but somewhere in North Baffin. There
will be a minimum of four workshops
offered.

The video that | discussed about the
business aftercare booklets will be
available in both languages and will be
available to all of our members or any
tourism business that wants it to either us,
ED&T, or Kakivak or any of the other
community future kind of entities.
Materials will be available to people all
across Nunavut. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
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Chairman. When you look at the small
businesses within the Nunavut territory,
I’m presuming there’s a whole list of
them. How are you reassured that they
have received your documentation or
your information? As a tourism board,
how are you reassured that they have read
or understood the market readiness
matter? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
When we are getting ready to do training,
let’s say, for example, we’re offering
wilderness first aid in Pangnirtung, we
send out materials, but we also call all of
our members that would be in the area to
come to that training so that we
physically speak with them to ensure that
they know the training is going on, are
they interested in coming, can we work
with them, do they need assistance
getting travel assistance from the RIA or
someone.

We provide written information well in
advance, but we also follow up with
phone calls to ensure that all the
businesses that we know in the area are
aware of the information. For the
workshops in communities that we may
not be aware of everyone in the area, we
contact the EDO in that community to
see if there is anyone else that we have
missed. We physically make contact with
everyone as well as sending them
material just to be sure because you can
never tell with the Internet sometimes, so
we call people. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: So when you look at
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market readiness, $350,000, does that
cover all the businesses? For example, |
represent Baker Lake. If all the business
that wanted to go to this meeting or
workshop, they would be all covered by
this market readiness or is there a limit or
a cap per community? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
For each workshop that is offered, there
will be a limit of six participants so that
we can work with them to each develop a
product.

If there is a demand for more than one
workshop per area, we will try and find
additional funds to be able to deliver that.
We would work with any businesses in a
community to make sure that they have
access to these workshops and we would
work with them to, perhaps, contact the
regional Inuit association or someone
else if they need travel assistance or
money to attend one of the workshops.
We do that for any training that we put
on. We make sure that any member that
we have, any tourism businesses that we
know of has the opportunity to attend.

At our recent tourism conference which
just happened in March, we had over 60
tourism businesses from across the
territory attend and we had worked with
them to ensure that they all had travel
assistance if it was necessary. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. |
will go on to another topic.
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(interpretation ends) Sections 8.6 and 8.7
of the current partnership agreement
between Nunavut Tourism and the
Department of Economic Development
and Transportation for the 2015-16 fiscal
year require Nunavut Tourism to make
efforts to comply with the “spirit and
intent” of Articles 23 and 24 of the
Nunavut Land Claims Agreement.

Section 9 of the partnership agreement
requires Nunavut Tourism to submit an
annual report to the Department of
Economic Development and
Transportation by September 30 of this
year concerning its compliance with
sections 8.6 and 8.7. Will Nunavut
Tourism make this report available to the
general public? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As | said earlier, we are working to
change our website so that annual reports
will be available to the general public on
the website, but our annual reports have
always been available if someone
requested them, so we’re working to
make that more available.

We work to ensure that we are complying
with our Inuit employment program as
much as possible. We follow a GN hiring
procedure of rounds 1, 2, and 3. All of
our positions are posted in northern
papers bilingually so that people are
aware of them and we are working to
ensure that we increase our Inuit
employment level. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.
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Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I guess I’ll move on here.
Information provided by Nunavut
Tourism indicates that $30,000 has been
budgeted in 2015-16 for the CEO’s
travel. This is an increase of $5,000 from
the 2014-15 fiscal year. What accounts
for this increase? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Part of this increase is that budget covers
attendance at things like Rendez-vous
Canada for me to go to promote the
territory. The cost of attending that show
by the Canadian Tourism Association has
risen, so we have to pay additional fees to
attend that show. The Canadian Tourism
Commission has also added a second
provincial/territorial organizational
meeting and they, for some reason, insist
on holding it in Vancouver every year, so
there is an additional meeting in
Vancouver that we must also attend that
that would account for the increase.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much. (interpretation
ends) You indicated a “must.” Can you
elaborate more on that particular word
you used? The CEO “must” attend or is
that by the board or can you elaborate
more? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.
Ms. Dupius: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

This is one of the activities that the board
wants the CEO to attend. This puts

Sdbeal®, Ab/RPCSb,

Ab/PCSe OLMNJO): Ssdvy*al™, ™ D>A. C
P,

rpesd<se ONNNJO): sdyeal™, Ab/PCe®,
Ao 6% <cSL. DNPLINC
<ADA*QPP®NCHALIC > GPDnibd® ot

a5 AS//LNC $30,000-0J% o SRALLNC
2015-16 <5GJUdo, Ca < AT <*LIsbse
A*MSGLJ%a So<SLE. Cbd<d PO NC>C
$5,000-0% Ac_>><5Ne 2014-15 Cd=d. PATC
ARNSb®IoP>a. IPOAL®CH>R? Sdh*al™,
AbIRPCs®,

AP/ PCSe OLNNJO): sd*al™, C MPEyJ<se,
MC D>A.

I>A OLANJO): sdreal™, Ab/RPC, Cbdd
APEDAPC>LC G2 CAS ba CI¢ CAI™LS*LL,
DRRHFC pa ¢ Jc CodG UL AcDo<sos]c
AP nEC IPONSLC
APEbeo b CSbceDJS, <L ba Cl

> GPD RS Sepe/L b orSTLHLC bNLo ST
QgL OLoLC <GJCLE CAI*L
bNL,®DHbCA<BLEC CAPI
APOAAPNNYC $5,000-0° Ac LD*<NNLScC.
Sdtal™®, Ab/RPCSe,

Ab/PCSe OLANJC): Ssd*al™ ™ D>A. C
P,

rpesd<se ONMNJO): sdyeal™, Ab/PCe®,
D>bebD>LAC P C*a Lbc Sb>LAC Sbe>a.NIC
D>LbCCA b CCSLLdse Coa <\
QPLH AL > CNALLAL, Sboa
bNLM.0¢ CAL*a. NcYD>PLLAC DR HeG<C
Sb.oAC*UHLE?

AbYRDBCSe (ONNNJ): T DDA,

80




Nunavut at the national tourism table to
find out how we can fit in with what
other provinces and that sort of thing are
doing. Participating in these meetings has
led to partnerships that we have lobbied
the Canadian Tourism Commision to get
hunting and fishing on their radar to
promote hunting and fishing
internationally as an activity in Canada.
There is merit to attend these meetings to
develop the partnerships that we may be
able to further some of the businesses in
Nunavut and some of the products that
we have to offer better than anyone else

in the country. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. In listening to the response,
currently, Nunavut Tourism has all the
information gathered of who provides
sport hunting or guiding and any
businesses associated with tourism that
could be linked in Nunavut. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr.
Mikkungwak. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We work with many of the HTOs and we
have information on many of the people
who offer sport hunting. Because sport
hunting licences are issued under the
Department of Environment, not the
department Economic Development and
Transportation, it is not a tourism
operator outfitter licence. There may be
some people who are operating sport
hunts that we’re not aware of, but we
work with the major agents and most of
the HTOs that offer sport hunts and they
are members of Nunavut Tourism. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: | guess | haven’t
gone on the website yet, but as you’re
answering those questions, is all that
information provided on your website?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.Yes, that information is
provided and there’s a member listing,
listing what services people offer that
visitors can download and with contract
and links to people’s websites and that
sort of thing. That’s all on our website.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, if you
would allow me, | would like to make a
supplement to Mr. Mikkungwak’s
question regarding (interpretation ends)
the market readiness program and
marketing campaign, (interpretation) if |
could go back to that.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Maybe my
first question is: how many members do
you have to date? Is it around 150 or
thereabout? That’s my first question. In
your 2013-14 annual report, I think there
are less than 150 because there are less
than 150 written here. You also indicated
that these monies will be used so that
members can participate and showcase
their projects.

My first question is: how can | get a
membership with Nunavut Tourism? Do
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you have any rules where you have to
qualify to become a member or can you
turn down my request for membership?
I’ll have another question afterwards.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. It’s
very similar to Mr. Savikataaq’s
question, but you added a component of
the potential for denial of applications.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
don’t ever remember turning down
anyone for membership. What we sort of
require for membership is a one-page
simple application, you need to be a
licensed tourism operator, either a
tourism establishment or an outfitter
under Economic Development and
Transportation’s regulations under the
Travel and Tourism Act, and you need to
have proof of liability insurance, which
you need to be a licensed operator. As
long as someone has passed the
requirement that they have the required
licences to operate in Nunavut, you’re
qualified to be a member of Nunavut
Tourism. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. The reason why | asked
that question is looking at the reports
here, and I’m not going to say the name,
but the staff would like to make their
services available. I know the staff
member and that’s not the case.

For example, they get their clients in and
then, if they go to the floe edge, they
bring cots, portable showers, and it states
here that it will be a real life experience.
They have all the luxuries of a modern-
day camp when they go out there with
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showers and everything. That’s why |
asked you if anyone can be denied their
request for membership.

As long as applicants have a licence and
everything else, they qualify. There is
approximately $850,000 that is to be
used. You have a lot of members from
outside of Nunavut who are utilizing
these monies. Do they have access to
these funds because, of course, they’re
members of Nunavut Tourism? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The $500,000 for the marketing
campaign has nothing to do with tourism;
it is brand awareness of Nunavut. It
won’t be one tourism operator over
another. That will be something that a
government committee decides what the
focus of that overall awareness for
Nunavut is.

The $350,000 for market readiness is to
encourage more Nunavut-based
businesses developing product so that
they will have more product available
and be more competitive so that more
Nunavut-based businesses can take
advantage of the travelling public
interested in Nunavut. The market
readiness and the product development
materials are being aimed at Nunavut-
based businesses, not southern-based
businesses. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Do | understand that your
members who are not located in Nunavut
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do not have access to the market
readiness funding of $350,000. Do |
understand that correctly? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That money is to develop product
development workshops and do training
activities. It’s not marketing; it’s under
that category where it fell, but it’s to do
training and product development and
help Nunavut-based businesses grow. If
we’re doing a product development
workshop where there may be a southern-
based business attend, | would find that
highly unlikely given what the workshop
would be. If one of them wanted to and
there was space, yes, they would be
welcomed, but that’s not the intent of the
workshops.

The workshops will be someone coming
to us with an idea of a new whale
watching product in Pond Inlet, for
example, and we would work with them
to develop how that product or what they
need to do to get that ready to sell to a
customer, how they would price it, what
they have to include, how to utilize the
discounted airfares, and how to make that
product attractive to sell to incoming
tourists.

The goal of that $350,000 is to work with
Nunavut-based businesses and have them
have more products available so that they
are selling the bigger package, that they
are not just being hired by some of the
southern-based companies as guides,
which unfortunately is the case right
now. We would like to see them be the
ones delivering the bigger package.
They’re delivering the floe edge trip, not
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working as assistants on a floe edge trip.
The goal of that money is to get more
Nunavut-based product developed so that
Nunavut-based operators are getting a
bigger piece of the market and can
actually deliver some of the products that
people are looking for. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. If |
can just interject just for a moment, Mr.
Enook, within that funding criteria, are
there established guidelines that have
been created by Nunavut Tourism? Ms.
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: I’m not quite sure what
you’re asking about guidelines.
Clarification, please, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: When you’re talking about
putting these funding proposals together,
whether it be from inside or outside of
Nunavut, under what guidelines would be
an acceptable training opportunity to
develop product? Do you understand
where I’m going? Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
think so. What we’re working on and
what the RFP is out right now is to
develop a product development
workbook. You’re in Arviat, for example,
and you want to develop a product at a
time that a workshop is not going on.
There would be a step-by-step guideline
of things to consider of what you have to
do. The plan is then to offer a minimum
of four workshops where someone will
lead a small group of people through this
and work individually with those in
attendance so that after the two- or three-
day workshop, they will come out with a
new package that they can have a
brochure developed for, put on their
website, or something so that they will
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have a new product to offer, not just how
to do it, but from these workshops, come
out with something that they will then be
able to offer. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. I’ll
continue with Mr. Enook. Sorry.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Maybe I didn’t get a full
understanding of the subject, so I’ll leave
it at that.

With the $500,000 that was mentioned
here and if | understood correctly, you
indicated that you want to showcase
Nunavut or (interpretation ends) overall
awareness of Nunavut (interpretation)
and not only focus on tourism. My
question is: (interpretation ends) are you
the proper body to do that?
(interpretation) Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Ms
Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’ll be frank with you. This was
something that was identified in the
tourism strategy to be undertaken by the
Government of Nunavut two years ago. It
hadn’t happened. Our board suggested
that it be put in our budget, that we would
start the process happening because it
needed to happen. That’s why we’re
suggesting that a government committee
be set up to guide this process. It was
never intended that we be the body to do
this, but somebody had to do it. We
offered to be sort of the coordinator for it,
but that was never the intent. If you look
at the tourism strategy, the original
proponent for this was supposed to be the
Government of Nunavut. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Enook.

Mr. Enook: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Please, we don’t need another
government committee; we’ve got
enough. My concern is and | don’t know
if you are comfortable enough to tell us,
my concern is that this is taking work
away from your mandate and that’s
tourism. If this work needs to be done, |
need to be sure that you are the agency
that can deliver that work and know that
your everyday full-time job as the
tourism entity doesn’t suffer. I think
that’s just a comment at this time.
(interpretation) Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Just
to go back to when you mentioned the
RFP, when we’re looking at the market
readiness money, is the RFP going to
create the guidelines that you were
talking about earlier on what type of
programming would be most suitable to
use up those dollars with? Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We have identified a few activities for
those dollars. The video with the RIAs
following up on the business aftercare
booklet that has already been developed
and the product development workshops,
that’s what the RFP is out for right now.
It’s the product development workbook
and the delivery of the four workshops in
this fiscal year. Thanks, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Just
one final question, out of the $850,000
that we’re talking about under the new
budget money, have any monies under
those budget lines been expended to
date? Ms. Dupuis.
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Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The only monies that have been
expended are towards the market
readiness. Nothing under the marketing
campaign has been expended to date. The
market readiness, yes, because we’re
working on training opportunities and
that sort of thing for the territory. That’s
something that we’re very comfortable
with and have a solid plan for.

The branding exercise is something that
we need to work with the Government of
Nunavut on and to figure out what
direction we’re going in, and then likely
go out to secure an agency of record,
which is typical in this sort of exercise to
do the execution. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. If
you could just maybe give an example of
what has been done to date under the
market readiness and what has been
expended to date. | guess I’ll start there.
What has been spent to date on what?
Thank you. Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We have put the RFP out for product
development. We have started work
towards getting an RFP ready to have a
video for our business aftercare
developed. We have started work on a
sort of list or checklist for communities
to develop community events. This is
something that was identified in the
tourism strategy that a lot of communities
want to develop community festivals and
events, but they’re not sure where to start
or some of the things that they need to
make sure they consider.

It has been suggested that we develop a
checklist that communities can easily use,
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that if you’re putting on a festival, you
need to remember to get your liability
insurance and a number of other things
that have to be in place, to sort of have a
checklist that communities can use to
move forward. Work has begun on that
and a couple of other small projects that |
can check notes and bring to you
tomorrow morning. The main part of it
will be the product development
workshops that will take place starting in
the fall and that RFP is out right now.

Chairman: Thank you for that
clarification, Ms. Dupuis. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Earlier, Mr. Mikkungwak was
asking questions around the $5,000
increase to the staff travel for the CEO. |
just wondered: why does Nunavut
Tourism’s 2013-14 annual report not
include a detailed breakdown of travel
expenditures? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The travel expenditures for the CEO are
to particular national meetings or national
tourism events like Rendez-vous Canada.
The other staff travel that is listed in the
budget for communities is for community
visits and in the annual report, it notes
which communities those are that we
have visited. That’s something that we
can look at if you would like for the
2014-15 annual report, but that has
always been the way it has been done in
the past. We can certainly look at making
changes if requested. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: | think Mr. Rumbolt has a
request. Mr. Rumbolt.

AL® @ “cPCSHNC NNGHYLSNC >d<
ASPODLEN D @ cPPdLn <D
APLLOKSLALENJE sbrL<NPNa®. ALY
LcCCPLndeES NNSeI®C>YLIA*Q S HNE <L
SODALLDLAET Sh><<E @ b o P ac_®Chh
D>bD>Y b 5N CAL Lea DP<he
APC®IAL \BPLBNCN PP aG A5G C
CL*USoNe b bLPS\D>HNe IDA%a D>NLSC
>eor.

AP/ RXPCSe (OLNbJO): SdL>q [ ™ D>A, MC
GL>C CAL.

GL>E (OhabgO): Sgbeq ™ AbY/RDBCS® CAL MC
P JASeASHECSbD>>LE $5,000-0®
AP/ L*LC 1*+LLb™LC
AD>CCSHECPNANYE, 0a DT > G nrbdC
A%LC 2013-2014 @ A ASIY M C
A>ecSbeCsoTo Mo Cbd<? sdy*al®

AP/ RPCSe,

AP/ XPCSe (OLNJO): Sdbeq [ NC GE>C ™
D>A.

I>A (OLpede): Cod< D> SbeC®IC
PaDLYAYPNMo N Q+L<bE ba Cclc
DG:LYo® bNLARSoS.0¢ DR 55 baCcllr
> GOcnoT bNLoSoC <L <P*NC

ASba AL P> bCCSoT ¢ oac®of
NALAG®Dg >¢.n<Se/LCCSdC <L
QSCICLeDLT Dobbe<dMos ot a.c<® .o
0a.c*6%cSL LC Db/l Ll Cbd<l 2014-
2015 <SGJCLse/D>C CdSLaPe/Db
CAYP>NUITQTLDC, QPrpseC>Sdy o< C
AP THG H<DC Pla
CALAC*LA%*QNDA%a.A2C, M™C S>%Ja
DAYGENSHS L, Sdbal™ Ab/RPCS®,

90




Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. That was going to be my next
question, if you could have these
numbers in future reports. | guess she is
willing to do that.

Can you describe the process by which
staff and board members’ travel is
approved? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Individual staff travel to communities is
set out in a work plan. We identify the
communities that we’re planning to go to
in a given fiscal year and do a budget
calculated on the communities. We try
and visit different communities as much
as we can every year. We usually visit
each of the regional centres in the other
two regions every year, but other
communities are visited at different
times.

For board travel, we have two in-person
board meetings a year. Every third year,
one of those meetings is held in a
community. You will note that in the
2015-16 budget, board travel other has
increased. That increase is because 2015-
16 is a year that the second in-person
board meeting in the winter will be held
in a community outside Igaluit.

The board travel expenses are for the
AGM and for the second in-person
meeting this year that will be in a
community. That community has not
been determined at this point. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Dupuis. Mr.
Rumbolt.
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Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. When you talked about travel
to communities, you kept mentioning
staff. Do you yourself travel to any of the
communities? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Yes, | do. Last year, | visited Rankin
Inlet, Arviat, and Pangnirtung. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I’ll just ask one more question
for now. When it comes to travel for the
chairman of Nunavut Tourism’s board of
directors or the CEO, who approves their
travel? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As | mentioned, my travels are usually to
tourism meetings or national events that
come to the board and they are aware of
all of my travel. It is brought in our
monthly board meeting of what will be
going on in the next month.

The board chair does not travel for
Nunavut Tourism, so there is no travel
expense for that other than them
attending the scheduled in-person board
meetings. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Mr.
Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr.
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Chairman. Just for clarification, when
you were replying, you said that the
board is aware of your travel. Are you
stating that the board does not approve
your travel, or who approves your travel?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The board approves the plan that’s
presented on a monthly basis of meetings
that I will be attending in the next month
and most of those are national events that
we know of more than a month in
advance. A lot of them are put into a
yearly plan that is also approved. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak, round 2.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I don’t have a lot of questions,
but I do want to talk about this market
readiness once more. It’s exciting to
think that a Nunavut business can provide
market-ready products. | think the
challenge is for continuity because at the
beginning, a business can get lots of help,
there’s lots of support, and after a year or
two, keeping that up and keeping that
momentum up and producing the
products on a consistent basis is more of
what the real challenge would be. I'm
wondering if you can tell us what role
you think Nunavut Tourism plays when it
comes to that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak.
Mr. Dupuis.

Mr. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
This is something that | couldn’t agree
with you more on and it was identified in
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the tourism strategy as business aftercare
and it was identified as something that
should take place starting in 2017.

We worked with CanNor and found
additional funds that we could start with
a business aftercare booklet that was
produced in February of 2014 because
this was a priority. There’s a lot of
assistance and a lot of effort is put into
getting business started and we identified
along with NTI that there needs to be
something to make sure those businesses
are sustainable. The goal is to, yes, have
new businesses, but also have them
around in five or ten years, just not in the
initial start-up phases.

We have developed this business
aftercare booklet, which has been very
well received. It is available in both
languages and we can make sure that you
all have copies tomorrow. | believe we
have hard copies that | can bring in
tomorrow. The other side to go with that
is we have talked to the Inuit associations
and to some of the businesses that have
received this booklet and it has gone out
to not tourism businesses but any
business that has requested it across
board in different sectors.

A lot of the members and a lot of
businesses feel the booklet is great, but
they feel that a source of learning and a
source that they will be able to utilize this
better are through something more visual.
We are working with the RIAs to develop
a video product to go along with it so that
when you’re going to do something like
sit down to develop a new product,
you’re not just reading, but someone is
telling you and saying you need to look at
this form and you need to fill out this
form.
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People are sometimes more visual in
learning, so we’re trying to ensure that
people have the products that they need
to be able to keep businesses sustainable
long term. We don’t want this to be a
one-shot sort of deal. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. | want to keep to this, a little
bit about marketing right now before 1 go
on to my other questions. You have
identified a little over $1 million in the
2015-16 fiscal year to be spent on
marketing and that includes core funding
from the GN as well as the Canadian
Northern Economic Development
Agency.

When we talk about marketing, some
communities have a lot more to offer
than others. Maybe they’re better
established or they’ve had more support
over the years. Have you identified
communities that may require more help
than others? Are they in your plans to
provide more support to them so that they
can bring up their tourism opportunities
as well? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak.
Ms. Dupuis.

Ms. Dupuis: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We certainly have worked with that. | can
give you a couple of examples.

A couple of years ago, there was an
operator that was really getting into snow
goose hunting in Coral Harbour. We
worked with the regional ED&T office to
make sure that they had the materials and
stuff they needed for a camp, and then we
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made sure that they had a marketing
opportunity. What it was, was a
familiarization tour. We brought in a
hunting TV show that is seen by 28
million people in North America. After
the show had been seen, that business is
now booked two years in advance.

We did the same thing with a small
fishing camp in the Kitikmeot. We
brought in a fishing TV show. They are
now booked two years in advance for
what their season is. It’s a limited season,
but that’s what they want to work and so
that’s what we’re aiming to help them do.

The project that’s going on in
Qikigtarjuaq to develop a base camp, we
have made a commitment that when they
do a soft launch next year for the new
product that’s community-based, we will
bring in a media trip to get them exposure
and get them marketing awareness. It’s
the same with Arctic Bay and other small
communities.

We work with a community to see if they
have a new product that they can offer
that they want exposure with. That’s why
the familiarization tours and the media
exposure move around Nunavut, they’re
not stagnant, and it’s not just focused on
large operators. We’re trying to ensure
that all communities, if they have
something that is new or something that
they want to get out to the public, we
work with them to ensure that that
happens. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Dupuis. I’m
going to take the liberty and | appreciate
Ms. Angnakak’s agreement to continue
her line of questioning tomorrow
morning. She will be first on the list for
questions.
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I would like to recognize the clock, as |
still have to go up to the Minister’s office
to make a request for those other
assessment reports for the Committee for
tomorrow morning. We will adjourn until
9:00 a.m. tomorrow morning. Thank you,
everyone.

>>Committee adjourned at 16:54
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